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Chairman’s Statement

e

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as (the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to you the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
production, selling and marketing of cosplay products (including
cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs) and non-cosplay apparels
which include mainly sexy lingerie. Our products are principally for
export sales to more than 10 countries and regions around the globe
including mainly the U.S., Germany, the UK, Japan and Australia.

In 2019, the Group also diversified and expanded to sub-leasing
business by entering several lease agreements which relate to the
factory premises situated in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group also acquired
Zhejiang Kelee which is principally engaged in the research and
development, manufacturing and sale of fabric care, personal
hygiene and home care products, etc.

RESULTS SUMMARY

The turnover for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately RMB355.7 million, representing an increase of
18.1% as compared to that in 2022. Gross profit margin and net
loss margin were approximately 24.5% and 5.2% respectively. The
Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB23.9 million as compared to a loss of
approximately RMB15.1 million for the corresponding year in 2022,
which represented an increase of 5.8%. The Group maintained
healthy financial position with net current assets of RMB92.5 million
and net cash position at the financial year end.

BRI :

AARKPBERE X LERER AR ([ARF]
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PROSPECTS

In the future, the global economy is likely to face obstacles such
as elevated interest rates, geopolitical tensions, and trade conflicts
between China and the United States. These challenges will continue
to cast a shadow over the global economy, even as some positive
indicators emerge. Despite this, there is a prevailing belief among
market experts that interest rates have reached their peak, and there
may be potential rate cuts in 2024. If these predictions prove to be
accurate, it is possible that the overall sentiment surrounding global
business and investment will improve.

The Group will continue to use its best endeavor to improve the
efficiency and effectiveness of its operation. Moreover, the Board will
seek opportunities to diversify our business and broaden our revenue
stream by acquiring of intellectual property right with potential growth
and collaborating with companies in our upstream and downstream
industries. The Group will continue to evaluate and identify target
companies which have investment value and which can generate
synergies with our businesses within the industry and along the
industry chain, with the aim of bringing greater return to shareholders
while expanding our business and revenue streams.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, customers and business partners for their full
support throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my appreciation to all staffs for their persistent
contributions to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Teng Hao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and
Analysis
o 5558 755 [ R L L N o B 0

BUSINESS REVIEW E £ 40) ]

The Group is principally engaged in the design, research and  AEBEEH EFRT W L£E - HEREH
development, production, selling and marketing of cosplay products A EER (BIEACHERMH N ACKIERE)
(including cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs), non-cosplay apparels ~ MIEAEHERM (EERFEERAK) « KXY
which include mainly sexy lingerie, and fabric care, personal hygiene 5 Z#1E - MABTEZEENREBEEEEER -
and home care products, and leasing of factory premises in the PRC. A RERPEBEERE -

Our business can be classified into two major categories, namely — I XK AT 2D AMEF 2485 - EICMS %1%

CMS business and OBM business. N OBM ¥ 7 o
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Increase
(decrease)
of revenue
(approximate
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total %)
Wz 1E an
OB 4)
{&#&E 1h#B%E (B4
2 BSk W &= Bat Bo)
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Tir AR FT
CMS business CMS %75 208,646 58.7% 195,045 64.8% 7.0%
OBM business OBM %7 147,029 41.3% 106,068 35.2% 38.6%
Total 45T 355,675 100.0% 301,113 100.0% 18.1%
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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2023 2022
—E_—=fF —E-—F
Increase
(decrease)
of revenue
(approximate
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total %)
L gnepill
O 2)
{E#&E G458 (&Y
I &= BSk Wz B Bo)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFiT AR FT
Wigs RE& 42,096 11.8% 33,205 11.0% 26.8%
Clothing and others BREE K E A 229,555 64.5% 249,353 82.8% (7.9%
Fabric care, personal KB ZREE
hygiene and home BANBREER
care products REBREEER 84,024 23.6% 18,555 6.2% 352.8%
Total wast 355,675 100% 301,113 100.0% 18.1%

Our revenue from both the CMS business and the OBM business
increased from RMB301.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to RMB355.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
representing an increase of 18.1%.

To enhance our production efficiency and to foster the collaboration
of companies of our upstream and downstream industries, we
established a “Party Culture Industrial Park” (the “Park”) in Yiwu,
PRC in late 2019 and the lease period of the Park was subsequently
renewed for a further three years during the year. The Park, together
with our E-commerce Operation Centre and our Service and
Experience Centre (the “Centre”) helped to integrate and co-ordinate
with companies of our upstream and downstream industries. The
Group further entered into a lease agreement for the Feifeng Road
Premises, located near the Group’s existing Park (“Feifeng Road
Premises”) in September 2020, to expand the Park. The Group
had sub-leased the Park and the Feifeng Road Premises to the
companies of the Group’s upstream and downstream industries.

CMSEBELROBMEBH W mmEE T ==
+ZA=+—HIEFEMNAREI011EE T
MERE-_ZS-_=F+-_A=+—HILEEHA
R#355. 75870 - #N18.1% °

RRESHMNEERREBERITELTHARM
MEtE BAR - NFFREETEESZY
IEHAXCEXREMI((EXR])  ERRFRE
XEMESE - SER=-F - EXEERETH
BRER L ERS M ERT O (THL])  RES
FTHOBAZER -R_T_TFNA  ~%HE
i — BRI A R B3R A Y A 5 E I AT 0 AR BB
ME(REBYEDITLEEHZ  NWBEAER
CAKRBEREXBELREBMESHETANE
B ETHEITERORT -
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

o T 58 055 [ R B ML) 5 % 20 A

For the factory buildings at our Yiwu Production Plant and Yichun
Production Plant, in view of the uncertain foreign trade environment
caused by the COVID-19, the Group had sub-leased part of the Yiwu
Production Plant in 2021 and the Yichun Production Plant in 2020
to other local enterprises. Consequently, the portion being sub-
leased for the Yiwu Production Plant and the Yichun Production
Plant were being reclassified as investment properties at cost model.
As at 31 December 2023, 65% (2022: 65%) of the gross floor areas
were sub-leased. The Group is actively looking for tenants and the
management believe that sub-leasing the Yiwu Production Plant and
the Yichun Production Plant help to better utilize the assets of the
Group.

Gross income from leasing of factory premises of approximately
RMB5,952,000 (2022: RMB4,475,000) (including the lease of plant
and machineries) were recognized during the year and included in
other income on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company increased from
approximately RMB15.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB23.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, operational results or growth prospects lead to a
divergence from the expected or the historical results. Key risk factors
and uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. In dealing
with these risk factors and uncertainties, the Group remains in touch
with our stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing
their concerns.

These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may
be other risks in addition to those shown below which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could become
material in the future.

EREEBRERERLEREN IRAZT @
BRI A EHINERETAL - ARER =
E_—FRADBERLEEREEIR_ZT_FFH
BOEREEBRE D EFTHEMAMM D - At
ESAERELERLEEREN BB D HE
IRREME - R_FT_=F+_A=+—H"
B65% (T4 :65%) L EEMBED THM -
AEELEBYEHEF EEEHEEIHEESE
ERFE;EELERE A AEEREESINFA

FROBAEEREDEABRANDARE
5,952,000 T (=2 = =4 : AR#¥4,475,0007T)
(BREMENIEBHMEE)  StAGSEEREM
EHREROEMBBAR -

AAREERFRBAEGEREREBEZE -
+Z A=+ HLEFENHARKEIS1IEELE
mzEEz—_E-_=F+-_A=+—HLFENHY
AREEI30OEETT °

TERBRREFAREER
RRETRERETEYEFEBOEL - 55
HR - EEEERRRNT  SREERBEY
RBERE  PEAEENEIERARRER TR
EREMAMT - AREELARRERTRE
HEE AREEBHEREHE SETHRER
RAREMES -

BLFERWAFHRIEE  BROTAROERI -
7R A] BE B EL A R ek 1 AN 5% [ 3 A R0 2 BX3R I 30 3F
EREHRAEBELRE -
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2023 over 75% of our revenue was generated from sales to
overseas customers over 10 countries and approximately 64% of
our revenue was generated from a single customer. The industries
in which the Group operates are adversely affected by the economic
conditions, consumer spending, contagious disease outbreaks and
currency environment in these regions. Any combination of these
factors or continuing adverse economic conditions in these regions
may adversely affect the Group’s financial position, potential income,
asset value and liabilities.

Most of our revenue are denominated in US dollars (“USD”). Our
profit margins will be adversely affected if we are unable to increase
the USD denominated selling prices of our products sold to overseas
customers or shift the exchange risk to our customers to account for
the appreciation of the RMB against the USD. Further, any significant
fluctuation in the exchange rates between the RMB and the USD may
result in increases or decreases in our reported costs and earnings,
and may also materially affect our business and results of operations.
Any future exchange rate volatility relating to the RMB may also give
rise to uncertainties in the values of net assets, profits and dividends.

Some of our cosplay products in our CMS business feature popular
cosplaying characters originated from animation characters, comics,
car toons and movies. These products are manufactured under the
authorisations given by our CMS customers who are licensees or
proprietors of popular animation characters. As trends and popularity
of these characters may change from time to time, market demand
and the revenue thus generated from our products featuring these
characters will be affected accordingly.

The popularity of animation characters are largely determined
by the appeal of such characters to the target audience and the
effectiveness of the marketing campaigns conducted for the
animations or films from which they originated. Their popularity
is also subject to changes in market trends. If these animation
characters do not achieve our customers’ desired levels of market
acceptance or the popularity of which drops drastically, the sale of
our products featuring these animation characters will be adversely
affected correspondingly. Eventually, we may not receive similar
levels of purchase orders from our customers as we did in the
past and the revenue thus generated from the sale of products
featuring these animation characters would be substantially lower
than our expectation at the time when we plan our expansion and
expenditures.

o 358 055 [ R B4 P ) 5l % 20 A

RIZE-=%F " BAKENBT75% TR ERE 10
EBRRHEINEFHIHE - ka8 64% R KA
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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The intangible assets of the Group consist of trademarks and patents.
The failure to generate financial results commensurate with the
Group’s intangible assets could adversely affect the valuation of such
intangible assets and in turn result in impairment loss. Any significant
impairment loss charged against our intangible assets could have an
adverse effect on our business and financial condition and operating
results of the Group.

The Group conducts some of its business through associated
companies which share control with joint venture partners. There
are uncertainties that these joint venture partners will continue their
relationship with the Group in the future or their goals or strategies
are in line with the Group. Furthermore, these joint venture partners
may undergo a change of control or financial difficulties which
may have adverse impact on the Group’s financial conditions and
operations results of the Group.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE GROUP THAT
HAVE OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR

Saved as those disclosed in this annual report, there is no important
events which affect the Group have occurred since 31 December
2023.

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES

The Group will continue to focus on expanding our business by
implementing the following principal strategies: (i) further strengthen
our research and development capabilities; (ii) broaden our customer
base by expanding our OBM business in the PRC market; (iii) to seek
for cooperation with other intellectual property right owners to engage
in different business; and (iv) to seek for collaboration of companies
of our upstream and downstream industries to further enhance our
production efficiency.

AEENBEVEECEBEREM - MRAEE
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

LAW AND REGULATION

Law and regulations in relation to workplace quality and
environmental protection may have a material effect on the Group’s
principal activities.

The Group believes that continued business success relies on the
full contribution and support of our employees. We are dedicated to
promoting equal opportunities for all of our employees in different
areas, including recruitment, compensation and benefits, training,
staff promotion, transfer, and dismissal. All employees are assessed
based on their ability, performance and contribution, irrespective
of their nationality, race, religion, gender, age or family status.
The Group is committed to the health, safety and welfare of our
employees. We pledge full compliance in all occupational health and
safety legislations and we have provided a safe work environment for
our employees during 2023.

The Group has complied with labour or other relevant legislations. We
are not aware of any material non-compliance or breach of legislation
related to workplace quality during 2023.

The Group places the highest importance on the welfare of its global
customers, as well as on its broader societal and environmental
impact. The quality and safety of our products is of paramount
importance. All products are safe and fully adhere to international
environmental and safety standards, including but not limited to the
American ASTM standards, the European EN71 and REACH and
Work Safety Standardization Certificate (%2 £ EIZ%E(LFE). We
have also been awarded various certification such as ISO9001:2008,
ISO14001:2004 and OHSAS 18001:2007 certificates. We did not
identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation related
to product safely in 2023.

o 358 055 [ R B4 P ) 5l % 20 A
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

o T 58 055 [ R B ML) 5 % 20 A

The Group is commit ted to protecting and sustaining the
environment. We are committed to upholding high environmental
standards to fulfill relevant requirements under applicable laws
or ordinances during the manufacturing and material disposal
processes.

We did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of
relevant standards, rules and regulations on air and greenhouse gas
emission, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous or
non-hazardous water, etc in 2023.

Information on our environmental policies and performance of the
Group is set out in the Environment, Social and Governance Report
of the Company to be published in April 2024.

We purchased raw materials from over 70 suppliers. We generally
have alternative sources of supply for the same kind of raw materials
and hence, the loss of any single supplier will not have a material
impact on our operations. We do not enter into any long-term
procurement agreements with any supplier. We do not have any
hedging policy against any risk of fluctuation in the raw material
costs, but we closely monitor the market prices of the raw materials.

We believe cultivation and maintenance of customer loyalty is
crucial to our continued success. We maintain long term business
relationships with our customers from over 20 countries and regions
around the globe. As at 31 December 2023, our top five customers
had in average over seven years of business relationships with us.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

w0 SE 05 ol e B AR PR ) B o3 B
FINANCIAL REVIEW B ¥ O |
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
Gross Profit Gross Profit Revenue %
Revenue margin Revenue margin change
ke EfE Wz ER= BAL
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETFT
CMS husiness CMS %%
Cosplay costumes A AR 163,923 21.8% 147,052 23.9% 11.5%
Cosplay wigs AEMERE 29,628 20.8% 15,478 22.7% 91.4%
Sexy lingerie MR 4,104 24.4% 1,847 18.0% 122.2%
Fabric care, personal KYE2ERE - AAER
hygiene and home EERKERRERE
care products Em 2,711 29.0% 1,391 27.7% 99.2%
Others Hit 8,220 32.5% 29,277 22.2% (71.9)%
208,646 22.2% 195,045 23.6% 7.0%
0BM husiness O0BM ¥
Cosplay costumes A E R 33,846 22.5% 51,704 25.8% (34.5)%
Cosplay wigs ABEHERE 12,468 24.0% 17,727 26.5% (29.7)%
Sexy lingerie M RRA K 17,468 25.1% 7,643 22.4% 128.6%
Fabric care, personal KYERER 1I/\5§5§
hygiene and home EERRESRE
care products Em 81,253 31.7% 17,164 26.6% 373.4%
Others Hit 1,994 (1.0)% 11,830 40.5% (83.1)%
147,029 27.7% 106,068 27.4% 38.6%
Total 4Bt 355,675 24.5% 301,113 24.9% 18.1%
CMS Business CMS ¥ 7%

During the year ended 31 December 2023, our revenue derived
mainly from our CMS business, representing approximately 58.7%
(2022: 64.8%) of the total revenue. Revenue derived from the CMS
business increased from approximately RMB195.0 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB208.6 million in 2023, representing an increase
of approximately 7.0%.

RBE_Z_=F+_A=+—HILFE HM
Ml E E BB CMSET @ 154 58.7%
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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OBM Business

The revenue derived from our OBM business increased from
approximately RMB106.1 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB147.0 million in 2023, representing an increase of approximately
38.6% which was mainly contributed from the sale of fabric care,
personal hygiene and home care products.

Leasing Business

Our Park, the Centre and the Feifeng Road Premises were sub-leased
to companies in the relevant industries with the aim to integrate the
design and development of cultural products, internet celebrity,
creative design, research and development and supply chain of the
whole industrial chain. The Group also sub-leased part of the Yiwu
Production Plant and the Yichun Production Plant to other local
enterprises with the view to better utilize the assets of the Group.
Gross income from leasing of these premises (including the rental
income from leasing of plant and machineries) of approximately
RMB5,952,000 (2022: RMB4,475,000) were recognized during the
year and included in “other income” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Our gross profit margin slightly decreased from approximately 24.9%
in 2022 to approximately 24.5% in 2023. The slightly decrease in
the gross profit margin was mainly due to the decrease in the margin
contributed by the cosplay wigs and cosplay costumes which were
affected by the international trade environment.

The costs of sales increased by approximately RMB42.6 million,
from approximately RMB226.0 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB268.6 million in 2023.

Our cost of sales mainly comprised raw material cost, direct labor
cost and manufacturing overhead. Manufacturing overhead includes
subcontracting payments, utilities and social insurance for our
production staff and other miscellaneous items.

O0BM ¥ %

HPKBOBMEBHKREH T - —FHHA
REI6.1ABTENE_T_=FHNHARK
14705?%7% EINK138.6%  FERBRYIFR
IR AANFREERKEBEREEEMAEE -

V f £
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FoMTHEMAMPE UEFHHNBAREEE
E-FROHIAEEZSTDELABRANDARE
5,952,000 (ZZE = =% : AR#¥4,475,0007T)
(BREBELEROEE)  StAGRABREREM
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

Our other income decreased by approximately RMB4.5 million, from
approximately RMB21.6 million in 2022 to approximately RMB17.1
million in 2023. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in
subcontracting income of approximately RMB3.0 million and utility
income of approximately RMB2.2 million.

Our selling expenses increased by approximately RMB2.1 million,
from approximately RMB5.5 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB7.7 million in 2023. The increase was primarily due to the
increase in advertisement expense as a result of the enlarged
operation scale of the fabric care, personal hygiene and home care
products businesses.

Our administrative and other operating expenses decreased by
approximately RMB1.9 million, from approximately RMB95.7 million
in 2022 to approximately RMB93.8 million in 2023. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in depreciation and amortisation
expenses of approximately RMB7.2 million, and offset by the increase
in research and development costs of approximately RMB6.8 million.

The Group had applied the expected credit losses for all trade
receivables. The increase of the expected credit losses was due to
the impairment of certain long overdue trade receivable.

The Group has determined the impairment loss of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties based on the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units (“CGU”) with property, plant
and equipment and investment properties allocated respectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB3.8 million was
recognized as a result of the drop in the gross profit margin which
in turn reduced the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment in relation to the CGU of wigs.

The details of the key inputs and assumptions adopted in the
valuations relating to the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties are set out in notes 13 and 14 to this report.
There are no significant changes in the assumption adopted in the
valuations.

o 358 055 [ R B4 P ) 5l % 20 A
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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The fair value loss on financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss arose from the 15% equity interests in Diamond Virtue Limited (its
subsidiaries, are engaged in the provision of flexible staffing service
and recruitment solutions services in the PRC). The Directors are of
the view that the fair value loss were mainly due to weak financial
results during 2023 and will not pose any material adverse impact
on the financial position and business operations of the Group as a
whole.

Our finance costs decreased by approximately RMB2.1 million, from
approximately RMB4.6 million in 2022 to approximately RMB2.6
million in 2023. The decrease was mainly due to the repayment of
borrowings during the year.

Share of loss of associates relates to the Group’s associates
established for the purpose of developing the cultural tourism
business. The Group’s share of loss of associates for the year was
approximately RMB46,000 (2022: RMB212,000).

Our income tax expenses increased by approximately RMBO.1
million, from approximately RMB3.7 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB3.8 million in 2023. The increase in tax was primarily due to the
increase in provision of income tax.

As at 31 December 2023, the total amount of bank balances and
cash of the Group was approximately RMB49.5 million, an increase
of approximately RMB1.9 million when compared with that as at 31
December 2022. The slightly increase in bank balances and cash
arose mainly from the net proceed of a share placing of approximately
HK$32.8 million (equivalent to approximately RMB28.8 million)
and the net repayment of bank borrowing of approximately of
approximately RMB63.8 million and the capital expenditure of
approximately RMB19.1 million.

The borrowings of the Group represented bank and other borrowings
of approximately RMB8.2 million.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2023, the current ratio and the gearing ratio were
326.4% and 2.0% respectively. Current ratio is calculated based
on total current assets divided by total current liabilities at the end
of the financial year and gearing ratio is calculated based on total
borrowings divided by total equity at the end of the financial year.

The Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue generated
from its business operation, available bank balances and cash as
well as interest-bearing borrowings. The Board will continue to follow
a prudent treasury policy in managing its bank balances and cash
and maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure that
the Group is well positioned to achieve its business objectives and
strategies.

The share capital of the Company only comprises of ordinary shares.
As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s number of issued ordinary
shares was 1,477,721,120 (“Share(s)”) (2022: 1,262,267,600
Shares).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group invested
approximately RMB19.1 million in property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 December 2023, our bank loans were secured by the
Group’s right-of-use assets, buildings and investment properties with
carrying value of approximately RMB4.7 million, RMB65.8 million
and RMB32.5 million respectively.

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2023.
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RZEBEZ=FF+-A=1+—H "RILEREE
BELLLED R A3264% K% 2.0% ° ikt = Thi%
R BREERZABDEELERATBBERRE
FE - MERLXRAEMRFERZEELER
AR A az8st8 -

REFEEETEREEBEEELE 2 NE T
BRARTESRRASRTEEERE EF2R
BERERTEHRERSHBESERATENITE
BEREFEEMRENRBE SRR - UHER
REE R ENEETE B IZ R o

ARAHMEANEREBRRER R-_FT-=
TZA=+—H FARANEETEBRHK
B %1,477,721, 120 (TR#H ) (ZT ==
1,262,267,600 %) °

REE_ZE-_=ZF+-_A=+—HLFE &&E
EIRENARBICIBETADE  BEMEE -

RZFBZ=ZFF+-_A=+—8 BRANERTER
MASEEREESHNIORAREITAET A
REES8AETNARKRIBEETZEAEE
= BFREEYFREEMA -

AEER T _=F+_A=+—RLEBLME
REIAREIE -

ANNUALREPORT 2023 =& =44 Ht



Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Our exposures to currency risk arose from sales to overseas markets,
which are primarily denominated in USD and JPY. These are not
our functional currencies to which these sales transactions relate.
In order to minimise risk, the Group continues to adopt a prudent
approach regarding foreign exchange exposure. Forward foreign
exchange contracts are utilised when considered appropriate
and when attractive pricing opportunities arise to mitigate foreign
exchange exposures. Fair value loss on forward foreign exchange
contracts of approximately RMB404,000 was recognised during the
year.

As at 31 December 2023, we had approximately 671 employees (31
December 2022: 567). Total staff costs for the year amounted to
approximately RMB85.5 million (2022: RMB77.5 million).

The Remuneration Policy for the employees (including key
management) of the Group was laid down by the management of the
Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
Remuneration Committee will review and recommend to the Board
for approval the Remuneration Policy periodically.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for
approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. No Director, or any
of his associates and executives, will be involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

We have adopted a share option scheme to recognise and reward
the contribution of our employees, provide incentives to retain them
to support our continued growth and to attract suitable personnel
for further development. We regularly review the remuneration and
benefits of our employees according to the relevant market practice,
employee performance and the financial performance of the
Company.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7
August 2015, an aggregate of 35,200,000 share options have been
granted to certain eligible participants on 14 April 2023. The share
options are valid for three years from the date of grant. The options
shall be exercisable subject to the conditions that (i) the grantees
remain a Director or an employee of the Group (where applicable) on
the vesting date; (ii) the public float requirements under the Listing
Rules will not be violated as a result of the exercise of the options;
and (iii) the grantees have fulfilled the relevant performance target
relating to the Group (where applicable).

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 17 March 2023, the Company issued 215,453,520 ordinary
shares by way of placing at a price of HK$0.155 per share, and the
net proceeds from the placing is approximately HK$32.8 million.
The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the placing to
satisfy the cash flow needs of the Group which include (i) settle the
Group’s indebtedness falling due within 12 months; and (ii) provide
general working capital so as to accommodate the operating cash
flow needs to support its business operations.

As at 31 December 2023, the net proceeds of approximately HK$10
million have been used for general working capital of the Group and
the remaining net proceeds of approximately HK$22.8 million have
been utilised to settle the Group’s bank borrowings.

For details of the above transactions, please refer to the
announcements dated 17 March 2023 and 29 March 2023.
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Directors’ Business Review and Management Discussion and Analysis
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FULFILLMENT OF PERFORMANCE TARGET IN RELATION
TO THE ACQUISITION OF HIGH KELEE

Based on the relevant agreement, the vendor warranted to the
Company that (i) the actual net profit after taxation of the Zhejiang
Kelee (the “Zhejiang Kelee Net Profit”), the wholly owned subsidiary
of High Kelee, for each of the two years ending 31 December 2022
and 2023 shall not be less than RMB10 million each year; or (i) the
aggregate Net Profit for the two years ending 31 December 2022 and
2023 shall not be less than RMB20 million in total (the “Zhejiang
Kelee Guaranteed Profit”).

The audited results of Zhejiang Kelee for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022, which recorded the aggregate Zhejiang
Kelee Net Profit of approximately RMB19.4 million, is less than the
Zhejiang Kelee Guaranteed Profit by RMBO.6 million (the “Zhejiang
Kelee Shortfall”). Pursuant to the relevant agreement, if the Zhejiang
Kelee Shortfall is less than the Cash Balance, the vendor shall pay
the Company the shortfall which may be applied by the Company
to set off against the Cash Balance, and the Company shall pay the
vendor the difference in amount which amounted to approximately
RMB?7.32 million (equivalent to approximately HK$8.0 million).

Zhejiang Kelee is primarily engaged in the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of fabric care, personal hygiene and home
care products in the PRC. The failure to meet the Zhejiang Kelee
Guaranteed Profit is mainly due to the sporadic occurrences of
coronavirus (COVID-19) infection quickly evolved into major regional
outbreaks, leading to tightened COVID-related health measures and
lockdowns in Yiwu city in year 2022 and which lead to the increase
in raw materials and staff cost in 2022.

The Directors are of the view that the failure to meet the Zhejiang
Kelee Guaranteed Profit will not pose any material adverse impact
on the financial position and business operations of the Group as a
whole.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). To the knowledge of the Board, the Company had fully
complied with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group also has an internal control system in place serving the
check and balance function. There are three Independent Non-
executive Directors who represent nearly one half of the Board
offering practical, independent and differing perspectives. The Board
is therefore of the view that there are adequate balance of power and
safeguards in place to enable the Company to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively.

CULTURES AND VALUES

The Company is committed to developing a positive and progressive
culture with the following core principles and to ensure that the
Company’s vision, values and business strategies are aligned to it.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities
and operations. The Directors, management and staff are all
required to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the
required standards and norms are explicitly set out in the
training materials for all new staff and embedded in various
policies such as the Group’s employee handbook (including
therein the Group’s code of conduct), the Anti-corruption
Policy and the Whistleblowing Policy of the Group. Trainings
are conducted from time to time to reinforce the required
standards in respect of ethics and integrity.

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to
workforce development, workplace safety and health, diversity,
and sustainability is one where people have a feeling of
commitment and emotional engagement with the Group’s
mission. This sets the tone for a strong, productive workforce
that attracts, develops, and retains the best talent and
produces the highest quality work. Moreover, the Company’s
strategy in the business development and management are to
achieve long-term, steady and sustainable growth, while having
due considerations from environment, social and governance
aspects.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
THE DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors
had compiled with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout year ended 31 December 2023.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well
as reviewing the operation and financial performance of the Group.
The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
overall Group strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual
budgets, annual and interim results, recommendations on Directors’
appointment or reappointment, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
management was delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees.
Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board currently consists of five Directors including two Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Teng Hao (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Chengwu (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen Wen Hua
Ms. Peng Xu
Mr. Zheng Jin Min

The biography details of the Directors of the Company are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Board is headed by the Chairman Mr. Teng Hao. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Xu Chengwu, are
segregated and not exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the management of the Group’s business
and the implementation of the approved strategies of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
one-third of the Board. These Independent Non-executive Directors
are individuals from diversified backgrounds and industries and
one member has appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise.

The Independent Non-executive Directors play a significant role in
the Board as they bring an impartial view on the Group’s strategies,
performance and control, as well as ensure that the interests of
all shareholders are considered. All Independent Non-executive
Directors possess appropriate academic, professional qualifications or
related financial management experience. None of the Independent
Non-executive Directors held any other offices in the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or is interested in any shares of the Company.

In order to ensure that independent views and input of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are made available to the
Board, the Nomination Committee and the Board are committed
to assess the Directors’ independence annually with regards to all
relevant factors related to the Independent Non-executive Directors
including the following:

° required character, integrity, expertise, experience and stability
to fulfill their roles;

° time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;

° firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board;

° declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as Independent
Non-executive Directors;
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° no involvement in the daily management of the Company nor
in any relationship or circumstances which would affect the
exercise of their independent judgement; and

o the Chairman meets with the Independent Non-executive
Directors regularly without the presence of the Executive
Directors.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Company considers such Directors to be independent in accordance
with the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract/
letter of appointment with the Company with a fixed term, subject
to retirement and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Associations of the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract/letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years, subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Articles of Associations of the Company.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors may terminate his/
her appointment by giving a one-month prior written notice to the
Company or in accordance with the terms set out in the respective
service contract/letters of appointment.

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting, and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND

DEVELOPMENT

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by way of attending seminars relating to their role as a
Director of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2023, one annual general
meeting and eight Board meetings have been held. All Directors have
been given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings, and have also been given sufficient time to
review documents and information relating to matters to be discussed
in Board meeting in advance.

Name of Director

EENE

Mr. Teng Hao fe ok S A
Mr. Xu Chengwu BRCR A&
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR EE ST A
Ms. Peng Xu UL
Mr. Zheng Jin Min B S A

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials, and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and has
the liberty to seek external professional advice if so required.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage
their participation. The Board notes that the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen or, in their absence, other members of the audit
committee (“Audit Committee”), nomination Committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Company should attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions and collect views of shareholders.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board
Committees”) for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference.
The terms of reference of each of the Board Committees have been
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 7 August
2015 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
CG Code. A revised term of reference has been adopted on 30
December 2022 to incorporate amendments to the Listing Rules. The
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently
made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website.

The Nomination Committee consists of two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Peng Xu (as chairlady) and Mr. Chen
Wen Hua, and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Teng Hao.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are to review and
monitor the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s strategy; to identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board; to assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors; and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings for considering the appointment of
a director, reviewing the size, diversity and composition of the Board
to ensure that its composition complies with the Listing Rules and
reflects an appropriative mix of skills, experience and diversity that
are relevant to the Group’s strategy, governance and business and
contribute to the Board'’s effectiveness and efficiency.

Nomination Committee member

REZEERE

Mr. Teng Hao RSt
Ms. Peng Xu IR T
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR S EE S A
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 1 January 2019. The Company
recognised and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to the made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs
of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based
on the Company’s Board Nomination Policy and a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise),
ethnicity, skills and knowledge and length of service.

As at 31 December 2023, 64% of our colleagues are female. The
Board considers that the gender ratio of the workforce of the Group,
including the Senior Management, is appropriate for the operations of
the Group and will strive to maintain the ratio.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises five
Directors, one of them is female. The following tables further illustrate
the diversity of the Board members as of the date of this annual
report:

Name of Directors

EENs

Mr. Teng Hao o= blas

Mr. Xu Chengwu AR A

Mr. Zheng Jin Min B R A

Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SCEESE A

Ms. Peng Xu g

Name of Directors Law
EENS

Mr. Teng Hao [ & S A

Mr. Xu Chengwu AR A&

Mr. Zheng Jin Min BEHE A&

Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SCEE S A

Ms. Peng Xu IR L v

The Nomination Committee will review and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board
annually.

@
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1) reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(3)  commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
professional experience, talents, skills, knowledge, length of
service experience and other qualities;

(5) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7)  requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.08, 3.09 and
3.13 of the Listing Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

(9) such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need for an
additional Director or a member of senior management, the following
procedure will be followed:

(1)  The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
advisors;

(2)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(3)  The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should obtain all information in relation to the proposed Director
to allow the Board to adequately assess the independence of
the Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3.08,
3.09 and 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments
as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 7 August
2015 with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the
CG Code. A revised term of reference has been adopted on 30
December 2022. The revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one Independent Non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Wen Hua (as chairman), one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Chengwu and one Independent
Non-executive Director, namely Ms. Peng Xu.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy. The
model of Remuneration Committee described in code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code has been adopted by the Remuneration
Committee, which makes recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and
senior management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment and to review and/or
approve matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held four meetings for reviewing the remuneration
structure for the Executive Directors and senior management, the
grant of share options and the remuneration proposals for the year
2022.

Remuneration Committee member

FHEEERE

Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR S EE S A
Ms. Peng Xu IR T
Mr. Xu Chengwu AR A
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The emoluments of the members of the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 fell within the following
bands:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 7 August 2015
with written terms of reference, which was aligned with the CG Code.
A revised terms of reference has been adopted on 30 December
2022 to incorporate amendments to the Listing Rules. The revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jin Min (as chairman), Mr. Chen Wen
Hua and Ms. Peng Xu.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditor; reviewing the interim
and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system (including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in charge of the
Company’s financial reporting function and their training arrangement
and budget) and the risk management and internal control
procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held
3 meetings.

Audit Committee member

EREEERE

Mr. Chen Wen Hua PROCEE S
Ms. Peng Xu IR T
Mr. Zheng Jin Min B RS A

The Audit Committee performed the following work during the year
ended 31 December 2023:

(a)

reviewed the Group’s audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 in conjunction with the external
auditor and the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2023;

reviewed the auditing and financial reporting matters, including
the key audit matters of the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which are
set out in the annual report of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022;

reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function
performed by independent professional adviser;

reviewed the risk assessment and internal control report and
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
system; and

considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the independent auditor of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chong Man Hung Jeffrey was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 21 May 2015. The biographical details
of Mr. Chong are set out under the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Chong had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional and
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Board has the discretion to declare and
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
the applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands, any other laws and regulations applicable to the Company
and the factors set out in the Dividend Policy.

The Board shall also take into account the financial position,
cashflow situation, business conditions and strategies, current and
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and expenditure
plans, interests of shareholders, prevailing economic environment,
any restrictions on payment of dividends of the Group and any other
factors or conditions that the Board may consider relevant when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, is as follows:

BB &
BE-_T-_=Ff+-A=+—HILEE B2/
EAARRGZEMER (F8) SsTMEEFER
NERMESmT

Nature of services HK$’000
RHnHE FET
Audit services EiT AR 1,400
Non-audit services IEFE R
— Agreed upon procedures on interim report  — 3 TE &S B 15 3R 4 RIS 440057 TE T
under HKFRS 4400 EETHRENET 200
Total BET 1,600

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that
year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board oversees the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems. The systems and internal controls can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group. Business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with their respective units. The results of evaluation will be
reported to the management through regular internal meetings. Each
year, the management prepares a risk assessment report which lists
the risks identified and the management’s assessment on the impact
to the Group. The Board discusses findings in the risk assessment
report and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems in a Board meeting.

The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing
in the securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with
Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Other employees of the Group who
are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company
are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information and
any information which may potentially constitute inside information
is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to the Board and for
the Board to decide on the need for disclosure. Inside information
and other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules will be announced on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to and
complied with and reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements.
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The Group does not have an internal audit function due to the size
of the Group and for cost effectiveness consideration. Instead, a
review on the internal control and risk management systems is done
annually by an independent consultancy company. During the year,
the independent consultancy company with staff in possession
of relevant expertise conducted an annual review to assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered major financial, operational and
compliance controls in rotation basis and also the risk management
functions. No significant deficiency was identified during course of
review and the systems were operating effectively and adequately.
The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report
issued by the independent consultancy company and the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 and considered that they are effective and
adequate. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control
systems by considering the internal control review report and reviews
performed by the Audit Committee and concurred the same.

The Group has yet to establish its internal audit function during the
year ended 31 December 2023 as required under code provision
D.2.5 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee and the Board have
considered the internal control review report prepared by an
independent consultancy company and communications with the
Company’s external auditors in respect of any material control
deficiencies identified during the course of the financial statement
audit to form the basis to review the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee and the Board will continue to review the need for an
internal audit function on an annual basis.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 in Part 2 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted a whistleblowing policy (the “Whistleblowing
Policy”) on 30 March 2022 which provides formal channels and
guidance to facilitate the raising of matters of concern by employees
of the Group (the “Employee”) and those who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) (the “Third Parties”,
each a “Whistleblower”), in confidence, without fear of reprisals.
Procedures have been formulated to enable the Whistleblower to
report to the Group directly (addressed to the Office General Manager
of the Group) suspected improprieties.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.7 in Part 2 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted an anti-corruption policy (the “Anti-corruption Policy”)
on 30 March 2022 which sets out the guidelines and responsibilities
of the Employees, the Third Parties and those acting in an agency or
fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group. The Group Is committed to
maintaining a high standard of integrity, openness and discipline in
its business operations. The Anti-corruption Policy forms an integral
part of the framework, including the CG Code and Whistleblowing
Policy, outline the Group’s expectations and requirement of business
ethics, as well as the investigation and reporting mechanism of
suspected corruption practices.

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES IN SANCTIONED COUNTRIES

The US government and other jurisdictions, including the European
Union, the United Nations and the Australian government, have
comprehensive or broad economic sanctions targeting the Sanctioned
Countries (note 1) and Sanctioned Persons (note 2).

Note 1 — Sanctioned Countries are those countries which are the targets
of economic sanctions as administered by the U.S., the EU, the
United Nations and Australia.

Note 2 — Sanctioned Persons are certain person(s) and entity(ies) listed on
the United States Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets
Control Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List
or other restricted parties lists maintained by the EU, the United
Nations or Australia.

The Board had effectively monitored and evaluated our business
exposure to sanctions risk, including assigning senior staff to review
and approve all relevant business transaction documents from
customers or potential customers from Sanctioned Countries and
Sanctioned Persons. The designated staff reviewed information
relating to the counterparty of the contract (such as identity,
nature of business, etc.) along with the draft business transaction
documentation. The designated staff checked the counterparty
against the various lists of restricted parties and countries maintained
by the US, the European Union, Australia or the United Nations,
including, without limitation, any government, individual or entity that
is the subject of any OFAC- administered sanctions which lists are
publicly available, and determine whether the counterparty is, or is
owned or controlled by, a person located in any of the Sanctioned
Countries or a Sanctioned Person. If any potential sanctions risk
is identified, we will seek advice from external legal counsel with
necessary expertise.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of our products
were sold to any Sanctioned Countries or Sanctioned Persons.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board and Board Committees and the external
auditor will be present to answer shareholders’ questions in the
annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be distributed
to all shareholders before the annual general meeting and any special
general meetings in accordance with the timeline requirement as
laid down in the Listing Rules and the articles of association of the
Company. All the resolutions proposed to be approved at the general
meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after the
relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any enquires.

A revised Shareholders Communication Policy has been adopted on
26 January 2024 to incorporate amendments to the Listing Rules.
The revised Policy is currently made available on the Company’s
website.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The second amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of
the Company (the “Constitutional Documents”) were approved for
amendment by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 24 June 2022.

The changes were mainly to conform with the core shareholder
protection standards (set out in Appendix Al to the Listing Rules)
that applied to all listed issuers to provide the same level of protection
to all investors.

A copy of the Company’s updated Constitutional Documents is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 64 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two Months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.
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Pursuant to the Articles 113 of the articles of associations of the
Company, no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the
office of Director at any general meeting, unless Notice (as defined
therein) in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and Notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office or at the
Registration Office. The period for lodgement of the Notices required
under this Article will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting and the minimum length of the period during
which such Notices of the Company may be given will be at least
seven (7) days.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 225-27, 2/F.
Mega Cube, 8 Wang Kwong Road
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 3013 8913

E-mail: ir@partytime.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Teng Hao, aged 47, the Chairman of the Company. He was
appointed as an Executive-Director and the Chairman of the Board on
14 December 2022. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Mr. Teng has over 26 years of experience in financial and tax
compliance, administration and management. Mr. Teng has served in
various positions, including serving as the Chief of the Fee Collection
and Management Division and the Deputy Commissioner of the
Taxation Sub-Bureau of the Taxation Bureau of the Jianou City of the
State Taxation Administration PRC from 1997 to 2019. He served
as the vice president and chief financial officer of Wegoo Holdings
Limited (AR B BR A 7)) from July 2019 to November 2022.

Mr. Xu Chengwu, aged 55, joined our group as the Finance Manager
in October 2012 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 3 April 2020 and the Chief Executive Officer and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on 9
October 2020.

Mr. Xu obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting from the Hunan
Radio and TV University (#3F & EIEER A ) PRC in July 1999
and is a Registered Tax Agent under the State Administration of
Taxation in PRC.

Mr. Xu has over 25 years of experience in finance and taxation and
is responsible for the financial planning, management and internal
control matters of our Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

HEARBEHANE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Wen Hua, aged 56, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 7 August 2015. He is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chen obtained a Doctoral Degree in Economics from the Jiangxi
University of Finance and Economics (7T 7 Bf 48 K & T o £ %)
PRC in June 2006, and has been a member of the Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Jiangxi Province (FBIA RECAH AR IAEE T+ —EEZEY
in January 2013.

Mr. Chen has over 25 years of experience in the education industry.
He currently is a Supervisor for Master Degree students and a
Professor of the Jiangxi Normal University (;T PRI &5 A £2) and a
Professor of the Shenzhen Institute of Information Technology (&3]
= BB ERM 2R ), PRC,

Mr. Zheng Jin Min, aged 52, was appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 14 June 2019. He is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Zheng is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (9 B & ft & 5 Fh % &) and
has obtained a Securities Investment Fund Industry Qualification

Certificate (FEIBFHILEE S ERFEFE) in August 2017,

Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of experience in accounting. He
currently serves as the chief financial controller of a private company.

Ms. Peng Xu, aged 51, was appointed an Independent Non- executive
Director of the Company on 7 August 2015. She is the Chairlady of
the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Ms. Peng obtained a Doctoral Degree in International Law from the
East China University of Political Science and Law (3R B E K &)
PRC in January 2007. Ms. Peng qualified as a lawyer in the PRC
since May 1999.

Ms. Peng has over 18 years of experience in the legal industry.
She currently serves as an associate professor of the International
Law Faculty (BB A E %) at the East China University of Political
Science and Law (ZERBUEKS), PRC.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chong Man Hung Jeffrey, aged 45, joined our group as the
Company Secretary on 21 May 2015.

Mr. Chong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. Chong has over 20 years of experience in audit and finance and
is responsible for the company secretarial matters of our Group. Mr.
Chong is currently also serving as the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of Yee Hop Holding Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1662) since November
2019 and an Independent Non-executive Director of Taung Gold
International Limited (Stock code: 621), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Directors and Senior Management
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Report of the Directors

O

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company is an investment company and the subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the design, development, production, sales
and marketing of cosplay products (including cosplay costumes and
cosplay wigs), sexy lingerie, and fabric care, personal hygiene and
home care product, and leasing of factory premises.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
pages 66 to 67.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out in the sections headed “Directors’ Business Review
and Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 20
respectively of this Annual Report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 21 to 40 of this Annual Report and
notes 4 and 42 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the year up to the date of this Annual Report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, key relationships with the Company’s key stakeholders
as well as compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have significant impact on the Company are set out in the 2023
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 180.
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Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of the Group during the year are set out in notes 16 and
14 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company is not aware of any relief of taxation available to the
shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares.

During the year, the Group did not made any donation.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of borrowings and lease liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2023 are set out in notes 31 and 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Neither the Company nor its subsidiary purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity and note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Saved as disclosed in the section headed “Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements” of this annual report, there were no significant
events after the reporting period of the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (“Companies Law”) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB202.2 million. Under the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands, the share premium account of the Company
of approximately RMB273.9 million as of 31 December 2023 is
distributable to the Shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend, if any, is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The share premium account may
also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The articles of associations of the Company provides that the
Directors shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance which provides appropriate cover for the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Throughout the year, to the best knowledge, information and belief,
the Company is not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Company.
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The remuneration policy of the employees (including key
management) of the Group was established by the management of
the Group on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend the
remuneration policy to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for
approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. No Director, or any of
his associates and executives, is involved in dealing with his/her own
remuneration.

We have adopted a share option scheme to recognise and reward
the contribution of our employees, provide incentives to retain them
to support our continued growth and to attract suitable personnel
for further development. We regularly review the remuneration and
benefits of our employees according to the relevant market practice,
employee performance and the financial performance of the
Company.

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 76% of the total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the sales attributable to the largest
customer included therein accounted for approximately 63.9%.

The Group’s purchase from the five largest suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2023 accounted for approximately 40.1% of
the Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 9.2%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the five largest suppliers or customers.
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The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Mr. Teng Hao
Mr. Xu Chengwu

Mr. Chen Wen Hua
Ms. Peng Xu
Mr. Zheng Jin Min

In accordance with Article 108(a), Mr. Xu Chengwu and Ms. Peng
Xu shall retire by rotation at the 2024 AGM, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director (except for Mr.
Zheng Jin Min) has entered into a service agreement dated 7 August
2015 with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years
commencing from 16 October 2015 (i.e. the Listing Date) and has
renewed for a further three years and shall be automatically renewed
for a further three-year period after the expiry of the renewal term or
the subsequent renewal terms thereof.

Mr. Teng Hao, an Executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company. Mr. Teng’s directorship in the
Company shall be for an initial term of three years commencing from
14 December 2022, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company.

Mr. Xu Chengwu, an Executive Director, has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 3 April 2020, and has renewed for a further three
years and shall be automatically renewed for a further three year
period after the expiry of the renewal term or the subsequent renewal
terms thereof, which may be terminated in accordance with the
terms of the letter of appointment.

Mr. Zheng Jin Min, an Independent Non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 14 June 2019, and has renewed
for a further three years and shall be automatically renewed for a
further three year period after the expiry of the renewal term or the
subsequent renewal terms thereof, which may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment.
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Each of the Executive Directors may terminate the service agreement
with the Company by giving not less than three months’ notice in
writing after the initial fixed term. The Company may terminate the
service agreement with each of the Executive Directors by giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing at any time during the
service period.

The service agreement of each of the Independent non-executive
Directors with the Company may be terminated by giving at least one
month’s notice in writing by either party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

None of the Directors had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code
of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Based on specific enquiries of the Company’s Directors, the Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the accounting period covered by the annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group under the applicable accounting standards during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the related party transactions disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted disclosable non-
exempted connected transactions or non-exempted continuing
connected transactions of the Group under the Listing Rules. To
the extent of the related party transactions constituted connected
transactions as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had
complied with relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has the following transactions with connected persons
during the year and the Company has fully complied with the
announcement, reporting and/or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (where
applicable):

WL I # B A BR A A (Zhejiang Kelee Technology Company
Limited) (“Zhejiang Kelee") and £ SR AR&E R A ] (Partytime
Costume & Lingerie (Yiwu) Factory*), a company established
in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Sub-leasing Agreement
on 30 September 2020 (as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Sub-leasing Agreement on 26 June 2021) in respect
of the leasing of the premises for manufacturing purpose.

Upon the completion of acquisition of the High Kelee Investment
Holdings Limited (“High Kelee”) from the vendor, Ms. Feng Xianhua
(“Ms. Feng”). Ms. Feng became a Substantial Shareholder of the
Company, holding approximately 13.63% of the issued share capital
of the Company and Ms. Feng owned 39% of the equity interests
in Zhejiang Kelee (the wholly owned subsidiary of High Kelee), and
therefore Zhejiang Kelee is a connected subsidiary of the Company.
The Sub-leasing Agreement which has been entered into in the
ordinary course of business constituted a continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
upon the completion.

The total remaining aggregate rental payable under the Sub-leasing
Agreement (as amended and supplemented by the Supplemental
Sub-leasing Agreement) is approximately RMB5,950,000 which will
not exceed either (i) 5% or (ii) 25% of the relevant percentage ratios
(as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules) and the total
remaining aggregate rental payable is less than HK$10,000,000,
thus the Sub-leasing Agreement (as amended and supplemented
by the Supplemental Sub-leasing Agreement) will be subject to
the reporting, annual review, announcement but exempt from the
circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcements dated 20 June 2022, 29 June
2022, 5 July 2022 and 15 July 2022 for details.

*  For identification purposes only
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ANNUAL REVIEW ON CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions set out above have been reviewed by the
Independent Non-executive Directors who confirmed that the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Auditor, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”),
has been engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Grant Thornton has issued an unqualified letter
containing findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in item (3) above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SF0")), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of Director Nature of interests
EE=gE HRNE

Mr. Teng Hao Beneficial owner
[ iep v EREBA
Mr. Xu Chengwu Beneficial owner
RECE L4 ERBEBA

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this annual report, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was originally
adopted by the Company for a period of 10 years pursuant to a
written resolution of all the shareholders of the Company on 7 August
2015.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted at any time under the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
(“Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Scheme Mandate Limit has been
refreshed and approved by the Shareholders at the AGM of the
Company held on 24 June 2022 and a total of 107,726,760 and
72,526,760 shares were issuable under Scheme Mandate Limit as at
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 respectively. The number
of shares that may be issued in respect of options granted under all
schemes of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023
divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue for the
year is approximately 5.08%.

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
for the year ended 31 December 2023 were as follows:

Exercise
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Type/name of

the grantee Date of grant

#BA

BH/ne BHAM

Teng Hao 14 April 2023

¥ ECCE
mA+EA

Exercise
price
per share
(H$)

BRAER

(#7)

02

Eligible Employees other than the above Directors and associates
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13 April 2022
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14 April 2023
2
mATER

Eligible Non-employee participants - Consultants
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Outstanding
Cancelled asat
during 31 December
the period 2023
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- 11,500,000
(8,000,000) 39,000,000
- 19,700,000
(2,500,000 -

Percentage
o issted
shares as at
31 December
2023

f

- o)
T
2Rf
LT

0.78%

264%

1.33%



Notes:

The Share Options granted to the Directors and associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of Directors are subject to the conditions that
the Share Options can only be exercised by him/her if such exercise
will not result in non-compliance of the public float requirement under
the Listing Rules by the Company; and (ii) a grantee shall remain as a
Director or an employee of the Company or its subsidiaries at the time
of exercise of his or her Share Options.

The Share Options granted to the consultants are subject to the
fulfilment of the performance target of the Group including the Group
achieves an unaudited consolidated profits before tax for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 and the Group achieves an audited
consolidated profits before tax for the year ended 31 December 2022
or such other conditions as the Board may review from time to time.

The closing price of the shares of the Company on 12 April 2022,
which is immediately before the date of Granting of Share Options, is
HK$0.157.

The closing price of the shares of the Company on 13 April 2023,
which is immediately before the date of Granting of Share Options, is
HK$0.121.

The Share Options shall be valid for 3 years from the date of grant.

100% of the options shall vest on the 1st anniversary of the date of
grant, being 14 April 2024.

The Company believes that by offering the eligible persons a
shareholding stake in the Company, the interests of the eligible
persons and the Company will align and thereby the eligible persons
with additional incentives to improve the Company’s performance.

As at

31 December 2023, so far as is known to the Directors, the

following persons (other than the Directors and chief Executives of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Reportofthe Directors
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Long positions in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company:

RARB RN RBERONETR

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
Name of substantial shareholders Notes  Nature of interest ordinary shares the Company
1 F SN
BRITER*H
TERFRRE M7 RBaKE YERME #aask
Mr. Chen Shucai (a) Interest of controlled corporation 251,859,000 17.04%
PRt A S A (@) RESEERER
Master Professional Holdings Limited (a) Beneficial owner 251,859,000 17.04%
(“Master Professional”)
Master Professional Holdings Limited @) EB=mBEBA
(['Master Professional])
Mr. Lam Shek Sun Beneficial owner 78,563,000 5.32%
WaFkE ExnEEA
Mr. Li Bin Beneficial owner 168,561,000 11.41%
XA E ExnEEA
Ms. Feng Xianhua Beneficial owner 170,000,000 11.50%

BEELL BEmEAA

(a)  Master Professional is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Shucai.
Accordingly, Mr. Chen Shucai is deemed to be interested on the Shares
held by Master Professional.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who have interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the registered required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during 2023 and up to the date of this report.

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section in this annual report.

(@)  Master Professional FRBR#lL A 4L 4 100% B 25 A -
Itk - PRl A % 4 345 A A Master Professional £

BzBAn b A s
B EXFrEEEI  EFHMAMBEMEMAL

RARBHBRG RBBEROD  BEREES &
B GBI EXVERE2 K3 N BB R AR TR E -
NARBEFRPEEPEIB6EFEZELM
Fracs MR SR B o

RIBEARBRFASHNERNERESAA
E_=FAREEAREAH $”ATEZ’ETTJ:
MHRAMEENTEREARFRE ©

ARAEEER
SRS —Hf o

ROFBRERAFRIEEE

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 B 9% 35 3¢ Ak % )t A5 [ 2 +i)



The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Teng Hao
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

A8 7 A B e

O Grant Thornton
2 5]

To the members of China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 66 to 179, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

BhERH L EEARAFRE
(RESHEEMILZBERAA)

BER

AZBENEERFE6E 179 B & T BRE XL
ZRERAB ([ERAFA) REWMBLRR ([
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LR ERER UGSV BHRRIE (B
BERGFBEER) -

AZBMAL SEVBRERREFESHEQ
2 ((BEEFMAR) B 2B EMBRESE
Al ((EAMBHREER) BRRNEESL R FHE
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HARERE  YBRARGHZHKEREZS

BERER

AZBE 2 ERTERBREEGITMASREMZ
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RZFEERE T ETERMORE A [ 2REm
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Ao RIBF BT AGH [BESFEERT A
(=PRI - AzEmBY N E5E WO ERE
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Impairment Assessment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

W% BEREME R EMEREFE

Refer to the summary of material accounting policies in note 2.6, note 2.7, note 2.20, note 4, note 15 and note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.
ELEGA YRR E2.6 - H5E2.7 - B5E2.20 ~ M54 -

Key Audit Matter
ARERENR

At 31 December 2023, the Group had property, plant and
equipment and investment properties of approximately
RMB205,423,000 and RMB69,608,000, respectively.
RZEZ=F+=_A=+—H8 ' E5EYE BELRX
HBARIRE YD BIH A AR 205,423,000 7T & A R
69,608,000 7T °

Impairment indication was noted as at 31 December 2023.
The management further measures the recoverable amount
of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
based on value in use of the cash-generating units (“CGUs")
to which the assets belong, performed by an independent
professional valuer which is supported by future discounted
cash flows of each CGUs.

RZEZ=F+ A=+ —HZHIRETR - BEER
BEVEELEMUEEMB ReEAEUFEREBE
TEE E—FPAEVE BELRBARKEDEZ
Aok eE ERABENASRSESBMARKUERE
SMERKE -

The management measures the recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment and investment properties
based on value in use of the CGUs to which the assets belong,
performed by an independent professional valuer which is
supported by future discounted cash flows of each CGUSs.
ERERBBUEXRMEMHEEMB I REEFBEMLRE
REELETNMEE AE2EVE BERXBARKEYME
ZAEY e FREBEDUSREEFESBMHARKIE
REMEREKIE -

MIEE IS MM I6AZERG A BRME -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FRBAEEZTEERBEXERNA X

Our audit procedures in relation to assessing the

appropriateness of the valuation of CGUs included the

following:

AT EReEFELNGEZHEENEZETE

BEATEIE

° assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer;

o CFHMAMEMNERE N RERINL

° discussed with management about the valuation
techniques adopted by the valuer, obtained and read
the valuation reports and assessed the appropriateness
of valuation techniques used by the valuer;

e CEHEEEMRGEMMAKANMGERITETSR
BRI BEMERS - WA GG ERARARER
e @& 1

o reconciled input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved cashflow forecast and lease agreements;

e CDHBARBREXFHIEHE NLIERSRE
TR R E W

° assessed the reasonableness of key inputs which were
used to determine the recoverable amount under
income approach, including discount rate, inflation
rate, market rent, sales growth rate and utilisation rate;

e EFERBBRBAEZEETERESENEZH AR
B(BEMBRE ERE mElHe  HEERER
ERAK)NEEME

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 =% = =AR4EHt



Independent Auditor’s Report

3 37 A% B e

Impairment Assessment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties (continued)

MR BERRMLUREEMRREFE(Z)

Refer to the summary of material accounting policies in note 2.6, note 2.7, note 2.20, note 4, note 15 and note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.
BLHGAVBHRRNE2.6 - H5E2.7 - B5E2.20 « HsE4 -

Key Audit Matter
HARERENR

Management concluded that the impairment loss on
property, plant and equipment and investment properties was
RMB3,772,000 and RMB Nil respectively, based on the results
of the assessment which involved significant judgements,
including utilisation rate, discount rate, inflation rates, sales
growth rate and market rent.

EEEGSLAW BEIGER ESLREXRNHAEK (21
AR BRE BRX HEELRERTSEESR)) 5
RIS EME BMERZHEARKREVENREEEARSE
3,772,000t R AREEZTT ©

We have identified impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties as a key audit
matter to our audit because the assessment involves significant
management’s judgement and use of estimates.
TIZBEN Y ZE - BE Rk A RI& & W) 3R E ATl 5 Al
RAREZEE ARZNMINRERERBHEG RER
gt e

MIEE IS MM I6MZERS A BRME -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FRBAEEZTEERBEXERNA X

o discussed with management about the allocation of
recoverable amount to each individual item of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties; and

e CHEEERAZYVE BERRBURKREME
&R E DA B S FEETH R &

° assessed the reasonableness of allocation basis based
on our understanding of the business.
o  RERMEEBNERTEHOMELENSIEN -
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Expected Credit Losses (“ECL”) Assessment of Trade Receivables

REBURFRAMERGR ((RUEREIR] FH

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Refer to the summary of material accounting policies in note 2.10, note 4, note 22 and note 42.4 to the consolidated financial

statements.

A2HE AP BEHRRME2.10 M4 M2 RME4R24ANZEXNGTHREME -

Key Audit Matter
ARERENR

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s
trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB37,167,000
net of ECL allowance of RMB4,867,000.
RZZEZ=F+=-A=+—H BE£EEZEFHEKFERERA
BHA/AR®37,167,0007T - EFEHHKRIESREEEER
Hem AR 4,867,0007T °

ECL allowance for trade receivables are based on
management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL to be incurred, by
using a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit
loss experience based on the past due status of the debtors,
adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and
estimates of future economic conditions, all of which involve a
significant degree of management judgement.
BORKFEERAEEERRBE IREBEEEUHEES
ZEHEEHEEEARMGEL  BATRBERR B
FEELEEEELBAEE ARNSBARR AERETMHE
I8 E T - DA R E B 1 B R R A AR R Y R 5T
ZEEF RERBENEEREHE -

We have identified the ECL assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of its significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the assessment involves
significant management’s judgement and use of estimates.
RZHBAEE ZEKCRIBEREEEETEENRERE
RER ARZAGHEaMBREAME IEBEKXR - BT
mrRERERE I REREE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

FRBAEEZTEERBEXERNA X

Our audit procedures in relation to ECL assessment of the
trade receivables included the following:

R EE SRR E AHREEERENEZER
BELNTSEE :

obtained the Group’s policies on credit policy given to
customers and an understanding of how management
assesses the impairment of trade receivables under the
ECL model;

BE EXEBERTEFPZEERE W THRERRE
AR IE S E E BB R A TEE 5 R W IERE

tested, on a sample basis, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables by comparing with the relevant sales
invoices and value added tax invoices;
REEEREEREIISENEZETLE - B
BEE 5 RYGRIARE DT

assessed the reasonableness of management’s ECL
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements, on
as sample basis, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information,
and assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising ECL allowance;
and

REMERREREBEBHGSMAZER
EREMFRBGEEBRMAG 2B BEAR
FEELENOBENERYE THELEEXERER
EARBERARAIELENZ RHAR  UKRFEE
BENRBERERAEERBERGEEEEERE
M

involved the valuation specialist to review the
management’s estimation on ECL.

BELEEXALERERENRPEEBEME -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2023 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

H & ¥
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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7o RIRFIEEENER - AZEAEMH &
i DB IR E B TSR EAHEE
AW ARFEIBRAIGEER SRET

L 4 435 47 X
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AEREEE -
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

28 March 2024

Kan Kai Ching
Practising Certificate No.: PO7816

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

f o 16 g B HL At 4 T WAL i 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z-_=-F+_A=1+—HILEE

2023 2022
—E-=H% B &
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Hisz AR¥TFIT AREFT
Revenue & 6 355,675 301,113
Costs of sales SHE MR (268,637) (226,055)
Gross profit £7 87,038 75,058
Other income HAbUA 7 17,140 21,634
Share of loss of associates D E QA EE (46) (212)
Selling expenses HERX (7,689) (5,542)
Expected credit losses (“ECL”) allowance on B S EWGIBTEREEEIE
trade receivables, net ([FEHEEEEBE] 38 22 (3,273) (1,426)
Reversal of ECL allowance on net investment  # &R & FEMNTBHEZ EHEEE
in leases # [l 24 137 299
Impairment loss on property, plant and WmE  BE KR ERESE
equipment (3,772) -
Fair value loss on derivative financial MTESBMIARNTEES
instruments (404) -
Fair value loss on contingent consideration HFAREBAFEEE 29 (2,560) (454)
Fair value loss on financial asset at fair value A FEFFAEBR ([EAFERTA
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”") Bl WeEREENATEERE 23 (5,092) -
Administrative and other operating expenses ~ 1TB & E b 48 & 5 % (93,767) (95,665)
Loss from operations EEER (12,288) (6,308)
Finance costs BB A 8 (2,566) (4,618)
Loss before income tax PSR R 9 (14,854) (10,926)
Income tax expense FeHiM= 10 (3,758) (3,685)
Loss for the year FERER (18,612) (14,611)
Other comprehensive income/(expense): Hti2EKA (BAX) :
Items that will be reclassified subsequentlyto HEKEHRSEEHEZEE
profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign = HERIBLEBINER ~
operation recognised EHER 1,131 (1,393)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FREMR2ERA (FAX)
for the year, net of nil tax MERES 1,131 (1,393)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FRE2EMAZHEE (17,481) (16,004)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (expenses)/income
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Loss per share for loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Basic and diluted

THEHEEER (BR), B :
ARAHEAAN
S 3

THEFEERE(FAR) BA
o

AREHEEA

Sl ¢ g

FLATHEGRAAEERRZ
BRER

o 1R A B B Ath 2 i Wi A
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z-_=6+-_A=+—HIEE

2023 2022

ZE-=F —E-—F

Notes RMB’000 RMB000
HizE AR¥FIT AR Fr
(23,932) (15,140)

5,320 529

(18,612) (14,611)

(22,801) (16,533)

5,320 529

(17,481) (16,004)

RMBAE#(1.68) RMB AR (1.31)
13 cents 9 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2 ER LRIV

As at 31 December 2023
RZBEZ=F+=-A=+—AH

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Interests in associates

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Net investment in leases
Tax recoverable

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities

Bank borrowings

Lease liabilities

Derivative financial instruments
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H Bk 3 ScAb % JBe 45 Bt

RERAR

FRBRE

Wx - BER&E
EREEE
RkBEME

N NI Ok Fe
e

BEE

BRAVEFABENEREE

ELERIRE E

RBRE
Eas

B 5 M A YRR

MEREFE
QR EE
RIOTESREAS

RBAR

EE S ANE

ANEE
RITHER
TEERMIA
FEfIBIR

RERERE

RRERTDRE

3

Notes

Hat

w]

16
14
15
18
19
20

23
25

21
22
24

26

27
28
31
30
32

2023
—2-=%
RMB'000
ARBFT

205,423
1,016
69,608
1,552
8,369
4,516

908
21,783

319,175

23,338
60,514

49,456

133,308

29,660
45
8,180

404
2,548

40,837

92,471

411,646

2022
—E-CF
RMB'000
AR Fr

205,930
6,994
83,746
1,598
8,369
8,431

6,000
24,234

345,302

26,772
70,080
6,748
1,576
47,551

152,727

14,400
301
71,930
6,161

92,792

59,935

405,237



Non-current liabilities
Other payable
Contingent consideration
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

TENG HAO
%
Chairman
*E

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
22 I\ L
EEa BRIl

As at 31 December 2023
RZEZ=F+=ZR=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F — T —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 ABR®FT AR Fr
FREBAR
H b3R8 27 = 600
S ANRE 29 = 4,758
EXEHBEEE 25 566 881
566 6,239
BEERE 411,080 398,998
BEER R
[N 33 12,334 10,448
G 35 370,770 365,929
KRNE)EB ANELER 383,104 376,377
R 17 27,976 22,621
HEs 411,080 398,998
XU CHENGWU
HEE
Director
EBZ
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
%o 7 W i 5 B 2

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z-_=-F+_A=1+—HILEE

Share Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory  Translation Retained option controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* Profits* reserve* Total interests  Total equity

k& BBER REEE  EERE:  ERERT  REEH BREER it FRENR e
RUBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUGO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO
ANBRTL NEETT ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETT

As at 1 January 2022 RZBZZ§-A-H 8847 221,15 85,160 36,434 7,040 2539 - 361175 3365 364,540
(Loss)/profitfor the year ER(ER) /47 - - - - - (15,140) - (15,140) 59 (14611)
Other comprehensive income: £t 2ENE -
- Exchange differences on -BERRERNEEL

translation of foreign operation ~ EX£E

recognised - - - - (1393) - - (1393) - (1,39)

Total comprehensive expenses’ ~ ERRERT /(B R) €8

(income) for the year - - - - (1,393) (15,140) - (16533) 529 (16,004)
Transaction with owners: HEFANRS :

Recognition of equiy-setfled share- BB BRI

based payment (note 34) W) - - - - - - 5405 5405 - 5,405
Exercise of share options TERREWZ )

(note 33(b)) 138 3732 - - - - (1,097) 2,173 - 2773
Cancellaion of share options MR IE - - - - - 161 (161) - - -
Issue of share capial (ot 33)) BIRAE (£336) 1463 22,094 - - - - - 23557 - 23557
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENELR

(note 40) (#40) - - - - - - - - 18727 18,727
Transaction with owners HEFANZS 1601 2582 - - - 161 4147 31,73 18727 50,462

Asat31 December 2022and  WZBZZ%+ZBZ+-H

1 January 2023 R-EZ=%-A-A 10,448 246,981 85,160 36,434 5,647 (12,440) 4141 316,311 22,621 398,998
(Loss)/profitfor the year En(gE) /57 - - - - - (23,932) - (23932) 5,320 (18,612)
Other comprehensive income: 2 EMRE -

- Exchange differences on -ERARERNERL
translation of foreign operation ~ EX£E
recognised - - - - 1,131 - - 1,131 - 1,131

Total comprehensive expenses’ ~ FAREME / (KR) 8

(income) for the year - - - - 1,131 (23,932) - (22,801) 5,320 (17,481)
Transaction with owners: HEFANRS :
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETHA - - - o - (1) - - - -
Recognition of equity-settled  BFREEERHTN

share-based payment (noie 34 (W/#£34) - - - - - - 729 729 - 129
Cancellation of share options T2 - - - - - 676 (676) - - -
Issue of share capital (nofe 33¢) BRA (M 330) 1,886 26,913 - - - - - 28,799 = 28,799
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR - - - - - - - - 35 35
Transaction ith owners HEEANLR 186 2913 - 91 - 55 B 295 B 295

As at 31 December 2023 RZEZZE+ZAZ+-H 12,334 213,8% 85,160 36,525 6,178 (35,787) 4,200 383,104 21,976 411,080

4 The reserves accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of i HEREBRERASERGEMBRARAZFH
RMB370,770,000 (2022: RMB365,929,000) in the consolidated HBARE370,770,000c (ZE - —F: AR¥
statement of financial position. 365,929,0007T) °©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 /N Y2s B

HoBlehER
For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E8Z=% %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFIT ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRERE
Loss before income tax b TS BRI E 18 (14,854) (10,926)
Adjustments for: BATEBEEL AR
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TAEEENE 186 184
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - BiE LR EITE 16,113 20,020
Depreciation of investment properties WEYETE 3,398 3,748
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 3,915 6,899
Interest income FBEHRA (346) (231)
Income relating to net investment in leases HERE FHMEHKA (637) (753)
Interest expenses FEMRAEZ 2,311 4,043
Finance charge on lease liabilities HEARCHMEEA 255 575
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WE L& BE
equipment 10,083 2,840
Fair value loss on financial asset at FVTPL BATEFABRZEREE
2 AVEEE 5,092 -
Share of loss of associates DEHE A E &R 46 212
ECL allowance on trade receivables, net B RNFIENTEREREEE
BiEFE 3,273 1,426
Reversal of ECL allowance on net investment HEREFHENEHREERE
in leases BB (137) (299)
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - BEREREREESE
equipment 3,772 -
Fair value loss on contingent consideration HAREBZAFEEIE 2,560 454
Fair value loss on derivative financial MESBT Az AFEEE
instruments 404 -
Share-based payment expenses ARGt B 5 2 MR X 729 5,405
Operating profit before working capital changes & & 4 & B B 45 &% 7 36,163 33,597
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories BERL,(5m) 3,434 (1,011)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and other 5 REM BB R, ()
receivables 7,508 (11,584)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and other payables 2 5 K H i (< 3R IE L 0, CRi4>) 7,060 (7,431)
Decrease in contract liabilities EHEERD (256) (1,157)
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 53,909 12,414
Interest paid EAAF A (2,566) (4,618)
Income taxes refund/(paid) FIBHERR, (BB 2,502 (2,560)
Net cash generated from operating activities EETE TR £ FEE 53,845 5,236
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 /N NP = A
malleRER
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T-_=F+-_A=+—BLEE

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Subscription of financial asset at FVTPL
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Proceeds from receipt of net investment

in leases

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares

Transactions costs directly attributable to

issue of ordinary shares

Proceeds from issuance of share upon
exercise of share options

Payment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning

of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

RREDAEAE

2 HE

BEWE BEERE

WEEH B AR - MREWERE
RERAFEFABRENEREE
HEWE - BE RREMEREA

WEHE B F B S IA

REZB T L FE

MEETHRETE
RITBRPTF IR
BERITER
BT P FRIR
BITEBRERBERHKA

1TEEERRAE 1R B TR D FTIS R
HEaEMNK

BETE P HIE 2 FEE
ReRBE&SEMEM
(RD)BE

FYRE NIREEEY

S Sz 4ih =/ 45
EXRFHHTE

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, EXRRERBELEED -

represented by bank balances and cash

(Note 26)

LETRBRESRT
(et 26)
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2023
—B_=F
RMB’000
AR®TT

346
(19,119)
37

190

7,522

(11,024)

41,000

(104,750)
29,255

(456)

(6,161)

(41,112)

1,709

47,551
196

49,456

2022
—E-F
RMB’000
AREFor

231
(40,081)

3,977
(5,400)

1,630

5,738

(33,905)

111,732
(134,024)

2,773
(5,739)

(25,258)

(53,927)

99,661
1,817

47,551



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Partytime Culture Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as exempted company on
12 February 2015 with limited liability. The Company’s shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 16 October 2015. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is No. 3 Chunchao Road,
Yichun Economic & Technological Development Zone (“Yichun
Development Zone”), Jiangxi Province, the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design,
development, production, sales and marketing of cosplay
products (including cosplay costumes and cosplay wigs), sexy
lingerie and fabric care, personal hygiene and home care
products, and leasing of factory premises.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2024.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These annual consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

(Continued)

The material accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and derivative financial
instruments which are stated at fair values. The measurement
basis are fully described in the accounting policies below. The
consolidated financial statements is presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands
(“RMB’000"), except when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant are disclosed
in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAXRBREE »)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary
in the consolidated financial statements from the date it gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts reported
in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained profits). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost
is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
directly attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable at the
reporting date. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company’s profit or loss.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets include an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The acquired process is considered
substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing
outputs, and the inputs acquired include an organised
workforce with necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to
perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability
to continue producing outputs and is considered unique or
scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or
delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAXRBREE »)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value on the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as bargain purchase gain.

Where the consideration the Group transferred in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date. The
subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration classified
as equity is not subsequently remeasured and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration classified as a financial liability is subsequently
remeasured at each reporting dates at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or
loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that
date.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence, which is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control of those policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount
of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of
the investment. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable to
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the determination of
the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate
is carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less any
identified impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
for the year, including any impairment loss on the investment
in associate recognised for the year. The Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year includes its share of the
associate’s other comprehensive income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associate is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Where unrealised losses on assets sales
between the Group and its associate is reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment
from the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, adjustments
are made, where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when the associate’s
financial statements are used by the Group in applying the
equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate
is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate, after applying the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model
to such other long-term interests where applicable.

2.

i 5 R W

BEXEBREBE»)

BRI ARBERBE QR Z SR
ROk - W ARBREBRE AR ZEEF
ER A FRREBERER &
ERFEE - B IELES (KT ARE
HEER 2 HEMBIAE) BRI - FEBE
BRASERAFEREBERRZEE
BEBRBREE (BRRAFEER 2N
BRERE ZEBEREE) - AEBEG
BERRZAFEEMERBEIT ARE
BAFREMEERES -

AEEBREBERRZHARHZ RBERY
SR B - EARKEPTERHE QR 2%
AR o WA SR B EE R N R 2 B E
EZARERERZERGTHERD  AEH
MEeHBREEFRER - HitE QR
A BRRALFFBAEERREBR T
BUR S REMHAERE  AIREEARE
R mEMERZEE R B RREIE
HEAE - UEZBE QAR 2GR RRA
REBERAE -

EASEEEBEARZERESTNXE
BENBE QB 2R RIFEEBAEE
FIEFEEEHRRBEQRANR  TRIARE
BrEeBEEREE tmE  REAHE
R M (HER) BERBHEERR (118
HEEERDRIR  ARERBERRZ
R RIRBERSAGFEREZREE &R
BEEBRASERZBE AR ZREFH
ZHEMEPAESED o

ANNUALREPORT 2023 =& =44 Ht



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

(Continued)

After the application of equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment
loss on the Group’s investment in its associate. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group determines whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in associate
is impaired. If such indications are identified, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and
its carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by
the associate, including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date
when it ceases to have significant influence over an associate.
If the retained interest in that former associate is a financial
asset, the retained interest is measured at fair value, which is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial
asset in accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference between (i)
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of partial interest in the associate; and (ii) the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued, is recognised in the profit or loss. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would have been required if the associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by the investee would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Group’s presentation currency, as the directors
of the Company are of the view that RMB is more relevant to
the shareholders of the Company. The functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries outside mainland China is
Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”) and the functional currency of the
subsidiaries in mainland China is RMB.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency of the individual entity using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated (i.e. only translated using the
exchange rate at the transaction date). When a fair value gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised
in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into RMB at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in translation reserve in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the accumulated
exchange differences in respect of that operation attributable to
the Group are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress as described below and cost of right-of-use assets as
described in note 2.17, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the
related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

Buildings 2.6t05%
Plant and machineries 10 to 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and equipment 20%

20 to 100% or over its lease
terms, whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvement

Estimate of residual value and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. The gain or loss
arising on retirement or disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2.17) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised
so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method over
its lease terms. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of self-
constructed investment property includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the investment property to a working condition for their
intended use and capitalised borrowing costs.

The cost on initial recognition and subsequent measurement of
investment property held by a lessee as a right-of-use asset are
set out in note 2.17.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the investment property
is derecognised.

The Group transfers a property to, or from, investment property
when, and only when, there is a change in use. A change
in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence of
the change in use. In isolation, a change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence
of a change in use. Examples of evidence of a change in use
include:

(@) commencement of owner-occupation, or of development
with a view to owner-occupation, for a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property;

(b)  commencement of development with a view to sale, for a
transfer from investment property to inventories;

(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property; and

(d) inception of an operating lease to another party, for a
transfer from inventories to investment property.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill arising on
acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for goodwill arising on
acquisition of interest in an associate is set out in note 2.4.

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an
asset at the date that control is acquired (the acquisition date).
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2.20).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination
of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use. The following
rate per annum is applied:
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The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Intangible
assets are tested for impairment as described below in note
2.20.

Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in
profit or loss as they occur. Costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition requirements:
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(i)  there is intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

(iii)  the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated:

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

(v)  sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can
be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads. The costs of development of internally generated
software, products or knowhow that meet the above recognition
criteria are recognised as intangible assets. They are subject
to the same subsequent measurement method as acquired
intangible assets.

All other development costs are expensed as incurred.

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all of its risks and rewards
are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is
extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15, all financial
assets are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments, are classified into the following categories:

amortised cost;
- FVIPL or

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI").

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial
asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are
recognised in profit or loss are presented within other income or
administrative and other operating expenses included expected
credit losses (“ECL") of trade receivables and net investment in
leases.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the assets
meet the following conditions (and are not designated as
FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold the financial assets and collect its contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting
is immaterial. The Group’s bank balances and cash, net
investment in leases and trade and other receivables fall into
this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business model
other than “hold to collect” or “hold to collect and sell’” are
categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of business model,
financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVTPL.
All derivative financial instruments fall into this category, except
for those designated and effective as hedging instruments, for
which the hedge accounting requirements under HKFRS 9

apply.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings, lease
liabilities and trade and other payables, consideration payable
and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and,
where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless the

Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest.

All interest-related charges are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note 2.17.
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(Continued)

Financial liahilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities (Continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and consideration payable
Details of accounting policy of derivative financial instruments
and consideration payable are set out in note 2.13.

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type financial
assets measured at amortised cost and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information when
assessing credit risk and measuring ECL, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made
between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition or
that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly
in credit quality since initial recognition and whose credit
risk is not low (“Stage 2”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category while
“lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

Trade receivables and net investment in leases

For trade receivables and net investment in leases, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL and
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date. These are the expected shortfalls in contractual
cash flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL,
the Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience and external indicators,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, individual credit
rating and the days past due. ECL of net investment in leases is
assessed on an individual debtor basis with reference to credit
rating.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other financial
assets measured at amortised cost equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of
default occurring since initial recognition. Financial assets are
not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except
if and in the period the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.
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(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial assets at the reporting date
with the risk of default occurring on the financial assets at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)
Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when (i) information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the
Group); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised cost are set
out in note 42.4.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of
completion and applicable selling expenses. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method, and in case of work in
progress and finished good, comprise direct methods, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. It excludes
borrowing costs.
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(Continued)

Derivative financial instruments and contingent consideration
are recognised at fair value at the end of each reporting period
with gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the derivatives
qualify for hedged accounting under HKFRS 9.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third
party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash
unless the restrictions result in a bank balance no longer
meeting the definition of cash. Contractual restrictions affecting
use of bank balances are disclosed in note 26.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 2.18). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2.10).

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The amount of share
capital recognised is determined using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the share
premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an
identified asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations
which are whether:

- the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified
by being identified at the time the asset is made available
to the Group;

- the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

- the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess
whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated statement
of financial position. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made
in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any lease
incentives received).
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(Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)
The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-
line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term unless the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. The Group
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such
indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at
that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability are made up of fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
payments based on an index or rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payment
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced
for lease payments made and increased for interest cost on the
lease liability. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment
is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the
right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use
asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 month or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee (Continued)

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-
use assets (included prepaid land lease payments for leasehold
land) that do not meet the definition of investment property are
presented under non-current assets. Right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property are presented within
“investment property”.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group as a lessor

As a lessor, the Group classifies its leases as either operating
or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an
operating lease if it does not. Assets leased out under operating
leases are measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense over the
lease term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are earned.
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(Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the
head lease and the sub-leases as two separate contracts. The
sub-leases are classified as a finance or operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
not with reference to the underlying asset. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group applies the short-term
lease exemption, then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

The Group sub-leases some of its properties and the sub-lease
contracts are classified as finance lease.

The Group also earns rental income from operating leases of
its property, plant and equipment and investment properties.
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of wigs, clothing and
others (including cosplay costumes, sexy lingerie and others)
and fabric care, personal hygiene and home care products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group follows
a b-step process:

1. |dentifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s)
are satisfied.

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is allocated
amongst the various performance obligations based on their
relative stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price for
a contract excludes any amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sale of wigs, clothing and others and fabric care, personal
hygiene and home care products

Revenue from the sale of wigs, clothing and others and fabric
care, personal hygiene and home care products for a fixed fee
is recognised when or as the Group transfers control of the
assets to the customer. Control transfers at the point in time
when the goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of ECL allowance) of the asset.

Rental income
Accounting policies for rental income are set out in note 2.17.
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(Continued)

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants are deferred and recognised in profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross
under “Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, investment properties, interests in associates,
goodwill, intangible assets and the Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life or
those not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU")). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at CGU level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual CGU, when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H Bk 3 ScAb % JBe 45 Bt

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAXRBREE »)

fMAES A IR A WK fEB) - B AKHE
T A FE SRS - BIRAMBIRE AT
EHERR o TR #5 BY IO 1 & 178 B 5t P 1A 4 (B
AP REIR AT AR - SRR P RER -

EIWABENBRA/ME IR GEBaRE
2 ERERATEMBRA BRG]

EENSBRAKENYE  BEMEE
ERREE REVE RNE2E AR MES -
BE BYEENREARFRMB AR ZIR
BEMRmER EEEKREE  AgHEHE
EETTRERH

BEERAERFMHHDRAIRER 2EE
LEMBTVEERDSFEETREN
mEmREDAEMNTFRBREDSRE -

HMEBEANREEREEBRAE T RD S
BN BENKEA/MAT - JRESBERA
FAE (RERTI5 AR R &R A) B {E R (E
EmEPNRSE - NFHEREER &
FFERBRERENNAIRLIR RAIRERE -
NRBREMSEHSERRERZEED
i € B B RE A

REREME  FEEREELRAEE
EBIRNEMBEEMNRSRA - BRI KEES
BB ELRSRANR/NMERIEE (A
BeELEBEM((ReELBM]))EE -
it FoEESERETRER R - Mo
BEARBRSEESNERETAR - E7
BAEEE BN OREER  REEET
DEE@EMNRSELEN  TRIOEEAH
MRl —HOoEEENRNASELE
AR Rl ©

w]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the CGU, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in the profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligation under these plans is limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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(Continued)

Share-hased employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based compensation
schemes including a share option scheme and a share award
plan.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any
share-based compensation are measured at their fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. This fair value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets and performance conditions).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the equity instruments granted vest immediately unless
the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with a
corresponding increase in the “share option reserve” in equity.
If vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to become exercisable.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of equity instruments that are expected
to vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is any
indication that the number of equity instruments expected
to vest differs from previous estimates. Any adjustment to
cumulative share-based compensation resulting from a revision
is recognised in the current period. The number of vested
options ultimately exercised by holders does not impact the
expense recorded in any period.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in “share option reserve” will be
transferred to “share capital”. After vesting date, when the
vested share options are later forfeited or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in “share
option reserve” will be transferred to “retained profits”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income earned
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, for
the acquisition, construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.
A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(Continued)

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which
are present obligations at the date of acquisition are initially
recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After the initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation where
appropriate, and the amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above. Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of acquisition
are disclosed as per above.

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or
the asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b)  the party is an entity and if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the most senior executive management for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the most senior executive management
are determined following the Group’s major product and service
lines. During the year, the Group commenced the business in
research and development, manufacturing and sale of personal
hygiene and home care products in the PRC upon acquisition
of subsidiaries and it is considered a new operating and
reportable segment by the most senior executive management.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

(a)  Wigs;

(b) Clothing and others (including cosplay costumes, sexy
lingerie and others);

(c) Fabric care, personal hygiene and home care products;
and

(d) Leasing of factory premises (self-owned or held under
leasehold interest)

Each of these reportable segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2023:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related
amendments
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules

The adoption of the new and amended HKFRSs had no
material impact on how the results and financial position for the
current and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3

Amendments to HKFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback!
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)
Issued hut not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5!

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants!

Supplier Finance Arrangements!

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2024.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

3 Effective date to be determined.

The directors anticipate that all of the new and amended
HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for
the first period beginning on or after the effective date of the
new and amended HKFRSs. These new and amended HKFRSs
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets

ltems of property, plant and equipment (note 16), investment
properties (note 15) and right-of-use assets (note 14) are
tested for impairment if there is any indication that the carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable and the assets
are subject to an impairment loss. This process requires
management’s estimate of future cash flows generated by each
CGU. For any instance where this evaluation process indicates
impairment, the relevant asset’'s carrying amount is written
down to the recoverable amount and the amount of the write-
down is charged against the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
impairment loss of RMB3,772,000 (2022: nil) was recognised
for property, plant and equipment. No impairment loss was
recognised for investment properties and right-of-use assets
(2022: nil and nil).

The Group has determined the impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties based on
recoverable amount of the CGUs with property, plant and
equipment and investment properties allocated respectively.
The Group has identified wigs, clothing and others and fabric
care, personal hygiene and home care products as three CGUs.

(a)  Wigs, clothing and others and fabric care, personal hygiene

and home care products

The recoverable amounts of both CGUs have been
determined based on value in use calculations, which
use cashflow forecast available as at 31 December
2023. Fair value less costs of disposal is not used as the
management considered that it will not be possible to
measure fair value less costs of disposal of each CGU
because there is no basis for making a reliable estimate
of the price. These cashflow forecasts are derived
from the approved business plan which has a forecast
covering a period of five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets (Continued)

(a)

Wigs, clothing and others and fabric care, personal hygiene
and home care products (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the value in use
calculations on both CGUs are as follows:

- The sales growth rate assumptions are based on
management estimates and expectations of current
market conditions.

- The utilisation rate of the production line represents
the forecast projections in the business plan.

- The cash flow projections are discounted using a
discount rate. The discount rates reflect the current
market assessments of the time value of money
and are based on the estimated cost of capital and
adjusted for lack of marketability.

- A terminal growth rate has been used in estimating
cash flows beyond a period of five years.

The discount rate is considered as the key unobservable
input, an increase in the discount rate would decrease
the recoverable value of the corresponding CGU. As at
31 December 2023, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an 1% increase in discount
rate would have decrease the recoverable amounts
of wigs CGU, clothing and others CGU and fabric
care, personal hygiene and home care products by
RMB2,020,000, RMB9,404,000 and RMB3,312,000
(2022: RMB1,915,000, RMB12,461,000 and
RMB2,924,000) and increase the Group’s loss for
the year by RMB1,717,000, RMB7,993,000 and
RMB2,645,000 (2022: RMB1,628,000, RMB10,592,000
and RMB2,485,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, investment

properties and right-of-use assets (Continued)

(b)  Leasing of factory premises
The recoverable amounts of the leasing of factory
premise CGU have been determined based on fair value
of factories premises held for rental income purpose.
Details of fair value measurement and key assumptions,
are described in note 15.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories (note 21) is based on
estimated selling price less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal with reference to prevailing market
information. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience in selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in market conditions. The Group reassesses the
estimation at the end of each reporting period. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, there was no written down of
inventories to net realisable value (2022: nil).

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables and
within the scope of ECL

The Group makes ECL allowances on trade and other
receivables subject to ECL based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period as set out in note 2.10. As
at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables amounted to RMB60,514,000 (2022:
RMB70,080,000) (net of ECL allowance of RMB4,867,000
(2022: RMB1,594,000).

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other items within the scope of ECL under
HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Research and development activities

Careful judgement by the Group’s management is applied when
deciding whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary as the economic
success of any product development is uncertain and may be
subject to future technical problems at the time of recognition.
Judgements are based on the best information available at
each reporting date. In addition, all internal activities related
to the research and development of new software, products
or know how are continuously monitored by the Group’s
management.

Estimation of fair value of financial assets at FVTPL not traded in
an active market

As at 31 December 2023, financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market included the unlisted equity
investment carrying at fair value of RMB908,000 (2022:
RMB6,000,000). The fair values are determined by using
valuation techniques, details of which are set out in note 42.6.
This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent
with how market participants would price the instrument. The
Group bases its assumptions on observable data as far as
possible but this is not always available. In that case the Group
uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s
length transaction at the reporting date.

Determination of discount rate of lease liabilities

In determining the discount rate, the Group has exercised
considerable judgement in relation to determining the discount
rate taking into account the nature of the underlying assets,
the terms and conditions of the leases, at the commencement
date.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified the Group’s three
product and service lines as reportable segments as further
described in note 2.26.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating
results.

Segment results represented operating results of each
reportable segment without allocation of finance costs (excluded
finance charges on lease liabilities), bank interest income,
loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, share of
loss of associates, unallocated other operating income, fair
value loss on financial assets at FVTPL, fair value loss on
contingent consideration, fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments, unallocated corporate expenses, and income
tax expense. All assets are allocated to reportable segments
other than bank balances and cash, financial asset at FVTPL,
interests in associates and other corporate assets which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any reportable
segments. All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than corporate liabilities which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any reportable segments.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. S #EH#)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments:

Revenue from external
customers

Segment results

K SN E B R

SBRR

Finance costs (excluded finance BEE KA (T EIEHE

charges on lease liabilities)
Bank interest income
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share of Loss of associates

Fair value loss on financial
assets at FVTPL

Fair value loss on contingent
consideration

Fair value loss on derivative
financial instruments

Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other segment items

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Capital expenditure

ECL allowance on trade
receivables, net

Reversal of ECL allowance on
net investment in leases
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DIEBE R AER
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g
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Hft 38R E
EREH

Wx - BERRERE
B

BARHX

B A RN AN A
EEBERRFEFR
HERBZHENAY
CEERRED

NI RASEREENRAT2HRD BE D W
Yek R RAE DT

Year ended 31 December 2023

BE_Z_=F+_A=+—HLEFE

Fabric care,
personal
hygiene and Leasing of
Clothing  home care factory
Wigs  and others products premises Total
X
AR
BAER
EE
RREER
B REREM SEER BEHS et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBFT ANEBBTT ARWTT ARWTT AR¥TT
42,096 229,555 84,024 - 355,675
1,795 33,127 8,992 (2,148) 41,766
(2,311)
346
(10,083)
(46)
(5,092)
(2,560)
(404)
1,825
(44,295)
(14,854)
(3,758)
(18,612)
2,763 9,193 3,819 1,837 23,612
3,772 - - - 3,772
91 18,456 439 133 19,119
(58) 2,930 401 - 3,273
= = = (137) (137)
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from external
customers

Segment results

REINDE P H e ak

SWRER

Finance costs (excluded finance BE KA (T EERE

charges on lease liabilities)
Bank interest income
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Share of loss of associates
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other segment items

Depreciation and amortisation

Capital expenditure

ECL allowance on trade
receivables

Reversal of ECL allowance on
net investment in leases
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Wigs

%
RMB'000
AREFT

33,205

3,826

3,700
13,357

81

5.

PEBEHEH 2

Year ended 31 December 2022

HE_Z-—"F+-_A=+—HItFE
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Fabric care,

personal
hygiene and Leasing of
Clothing  home care factory
and others products premises

K& Z

I

(EPNERA

EI1P

SENENPA
REREM #EER KFEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFIT
249,353 18,555 -
34,583 861 (905)
15,247 1,587 10,317
15,917 26,988 87
1,294 46 5
= = (299)

Total

a5t
RMB'000

ARETT AR¥TT

301,113

38,365

(4,043)
231

(2,840)
(212)

17,140
(59,567)

(10,926)
(3,685)

(14,611)

30,851
56,349

1,426

(299)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. S #EH#)

As at 31 December 2023
RZBZ=%+ZA=+-H
Fabric care,
personal
hygiene and Leasing
Clothing  home care  of factory
Wigs  and others products premises  Unallocated Total
xMiEE
gE.
BAFE
- £
REERR
BE REREft HSEER REHEE XEE it
RMB'O00 ~ RMB'OOO  RMB'00O0  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000
ABBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Reportable segment assets M2RHBEE 38,141 161,609 64,967 94,868 92,898 452,483

Reportable segment liabilities ERHBEE 1,415 12,141 14,916 778 12,153 41,403

As at 31 December 2022
RIE__F+-R=1—-H
Fabric care,
personal
hygiene and Leasing
Clothing  homecare  of factory
Wigs  and others products premises  Unallocated Total
KMER
E3i
EAEEZ
E3i
PEIDA
g BREREM BEER BREE XREHE FoH)
RMB000  RMB0O0  RMB000O — RMB0OO0 — RMB0O0O0  RMB000
NEETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT

Reportable segment assets AEHRDIEE 40,89 187,065 44,358 112,593 113,117 498,029

Reportable segment liabilities BEEGE Y- 1,466 5,893 6,002 6,702 78,968 99,031
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

=

PEBEHEH 2

BERRINBEPREMmEMBEXBERMAE
FIE IR A BB DA EBE KM E R

Information about the Group’s revenue by geographical
locations presented based on the area or country in which the
external customer is operated.

2023 2022

—E-=F -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TFiT AREFr
PRC (place of domicile) AR (AR EE M) 86,001 36,855
United States e 237,453 231,308
Germany = 886 1,142
United Kingdom E: 694 2,783
Australia SEMN = 238
Holland AT B8 564 93
Japan SN 21,727 12,489
Israel LA % _ 144
Greece g 3,586 2,924
Others HAih 4,764 13,137
269,674 264,258
355,675 301,113

The Group’s non-current assets, other than net investment in
leases, financial asset at fair value through profit or loss and
deferred tax assets, are substantially located in the PRC.

AEBERERBEE (TEREHEEREFRE
BAVEAABENESREEMELEN A

BE) RBAIRFHE -

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED v B 9% 38 S AL % B A5 L A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, RMB227,260,000
or 64% (2022: RMB199,501,000 or 66%) of the Group’s
revenue was derived from a single customer of the Group. It is
related to wigs and clothing and others segment.

As at 31 December 2023, 26% (2022: 47%) of the Group’s
trade receivables was due from this customer.

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. Revenue of the Group is the
revenue from these activities and represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold.

The Group’s revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

i 5 R W

PEBEHE 2

REBEE-ZE_=F+-_A=+—HLFE "
REBRE—BRE—FFHRFZAARK
227,260,000 T8 64% (—Z T = —F : AR¥E
199,501,000 7L 8 66% ) ° 3% Uk 25 B R 52 & AR
HEHMHIEER -

R-E-=F+-"A=+—H AEEBH
JEUWGRIBRI26% (—Z B = —4F : 47%) BIEI
ZEBEPZFA -

&2
REENEEEBRERGAHBREN

Fle AEENREAREZEXHHWES
M EEMBERFE -

AEBEAE R ZWmIT

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TFT ARET T

Wigs BE 42,096 33,205
Clothing and others Alrgs & E A 229,555 249,353

Fabric care, personal hygiene and KYBRER  EABTRERER
home care products REBRERER 84,024 18,555
355,675 301,113
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6. REVENUE (continued) 6.

The Group’s revenue from sales of wigs, clothing and others
and fabric care, personal hygiene and home care products
are recognised at a point in time. The Group’s contracts with
customers usually have original expected duration of one year
or less. Revenue from major product and service lines are as
follow:

Contract Manufacturing Services business S #IBERMEET

ez

AEERERE  REREMARKYEZR
EIE - AARREENREBREERERN
HERRIZX —ERMHER AEEET
FHAH—MBRBE -FRUANRERF
B - TREMERERIMENT

2023 2022
—E-=HF — T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AR TT

Cosplay costumes AEPERE 163,923 147,052
Cosplay wigs A ERE 29,628 15,478
Sexy lingerie (ERANEIY 4,104 1,847
Fabric care, personal hygiene and KB RER AANBREER
home care products RESEZHEEE SR 2,771 1,391
Others Ef 8,220 29,277
208,646 195,045
Original Brand Manufacturing business FREREEXS
Cosplay costumes 1) E iR 33,846 51,704
Cosplay wigs A ERSE 12,468 17,727
Sexy lingerie MR X 17,468 7,643
Fabric care, personal hygiene and KB RER  BEABTRERER
home care products REFEZHEEESN 81,253 17,164
Others Efty 1,994 11,830
147,029 106,068
355,675 301,113

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED H Bk 3 ScAb % JBe 45 Bt
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OTHER INCOME

Bank interest income
Government grant (note)
Rental income from operating leases of
plant and machineries
— Lease payments that are fixed
Rental income from operating leases of
investment properties
— Lease payments that are fixed
Income relating to net investment in leases
— Finance lease income
Subcontracting income
Utility income
Others

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 5 R W

RITHEUA

RS Bh (ML)

ME R EREEHEZ
HE WA
—BEEEMNRK

BREMFREEMREZ
HE WA
—BEEHEENK

HERE FEAAUA
—RMEHEERA

DBKA

REERBERERA

H

N

=

Note: The Group was entitled to receive (1) a subsidy from the local
government authorities for export sales business conducted in
Yichun Development Zone and Yiwu, and (2) specific funds in
the Yichun Development Zone and Yiwu Development Zone.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank and other short term
borrowings
Finance charges on lease liabilities

RITREMEREER R

HERBEZRERM

Hfhig A

2023
—B-=HF
RMB’000
AR®TT

346
1,016

5,315

637
3,017
6,710

99

17,140

2022
—m—

=

RMB'000
AR FT

231
1,900

179

3,543

753
6,076
8,909

43

21,634

M AEEEROBIREERERMERET
H 35 5 55 75 HOER 3 05 IR A O A R
RQEBERERRZSHEERINER

A -
MENRE

2023

—g-=%

RMB’000
ARETFT

2,311
255

2,566

2022

=

RMB'000
ARETT

4,043
575

4,618
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense
Depreciation
— Property, plant and equipment
— Investment properties
— Right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Income relating to net investment in leases
Exchange loss, net
Research and development costs
Government grant
Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses in respect of consultants
Staff costs
— Salaries, allowances and other benefits
— Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (note)
— Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses

9. MIAEMAGIR
BATESRATE BRI, GITA) L TEE
BEE -
2023 2022
—E_=F —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ®FiT ANREFr
1% 85 A 5 B 1,793 1,514
ERARIHNFERAR
193,416 164,135
e
— W - BB KRB 16,113 20,020
— B 3,398 3,748
—ERREE 186 184
A 3,915 6,899
HEWE - WEREHERNEE
10,083 2,840
TEMAHEaETEN
HERE 76 72
AEREFHEMAERA (637) (753)
PE 3 E518 5 RR 6,127 842
T 2 A A 26,481 19,568
B 8h (1,016) (1,900)
FERERNESEE RS
BERNRAEZ - 644
B TRA
—%e R EEMER 76,697 68,020
— A EHFURIKRETEIH
W (AT aE) 9,169 4,697
— R EE AR B ER
B b 729 4,761
86,595 77478

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, no forfeited
contribution under the Plans is available to offset the future
contributions or reduce the existing and future levels of
contributions (2022: nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

The provision for PRC enterprise income tax has been
provided at the applicable tax rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on the
assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries.

Current tax ERRE

Current year — PRC enterprise income tax AR E —FR E P EFREH

Deferred tax (note 25) BRERIE (M52 25)
Income tax expense Frefif 2

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. From
December 2023 onwards, Partytime Group, Yiwu Partytime and
Zhejiang Kelee were accredited as “High and New Technology
Enterprise” in the PRC, and subject to a concessionary tax rate
of 15% for three years in accordance with the EIT Law.

i 5 R W

10. FRRIRBASZ

REBE_ZE_=F+-_A=1T—HILFE"
HRAEEREBST BEEERFREF - W
WEEHBEFNESRIELEANBEE(ZTE =
F|m) o

FECEMSHOBERPBENBRRN
FERR R MER MR R 25% sHE (2 - 4 -
25%) °

2023 2022
—_E_=F —Eg-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFiT AREFor

1,622 1,157

2,136 2,528

3,758 3,685

BEPEARAMECEMRERE (0%
BB RIEEMSRIEBRIES - R
MEBARBERSHHEEZEH AT ==
F+ZAR R EE - EBIRE KO
TIHFERATATE [GHEMEE] I
BECEMEREIZZ=ZMEFE15%HNE
BFRE o
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FR R8T 2
The difference between the actual income tax charge EBRMEMATERERNERAEH
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 7 =7 B8 5k BR AT 1S 75 A S ) B AR OE B B R AT
comprehensive income and the amounts which would result BRIEMNEZREERNAT

from applying the enacted tax rate to profit before income tax
can be reconciled as follows:

2023 2022
—E_Z=HF —EIF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFT ARET T

Loss before income tax BrPTIS R AT ES 18 (14,854) (10,926)

Tax on loss before income tax, calculated B FT5F B E 1B 8951 18 (32 25% Y

at the rate of 25% (2022: 25%) REHE) (ZEZZF : 25%) (3,714) (2,731)
Tax effects of: T EBEHNMGTE
— Non-deductible expenses — Al R B X2 4,249 4,372
— Non-taxable income —HBERTUA (220) (941)
— Additional allowance (note) —FBONEAE (1 5) (2,855) (3,040)
— Concessionary tax rate —EEBE (1,142) (379)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHBEEBZHETE 7,440 6,404
Income tax expense Frisfifx 3,758 3,685
Note: According to the relevant laws and regulations promulgated by Wi REPBEERBBLBEMNHMEEEER
the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, enterprises R RERB RN ECETCTERE
engaging in research and development activities are entitled to SR AR BREE KR EE N ER
claim 200% (2022: 200%) of their research and development ¥ H200% (ZF = =4 : 200%) 5| & A K
expenses incurred as tax deductible expenses when determining B o

their assessable profits for the year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had total tax losses of N-E-—=F+-_B=+—H KA£EHEH
approximately RMB29,760,000 (2022: RMB25,616,000) HMIBEEA LH AR 29,760,000 (ZF
that are available to carry forward for 5 years for offsetting — =4 ARMD5616,0007T) 7] 458 T &
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the WA SEE £ B AR 2 R K ERBHF o
losses arose. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due A R BETE I R AE R - O MR SRR AT
to unpredictability of future profits stream. The Group did not MIBEAE -ANEFBVETAEMEANLEDR
have any other significant unrecognised deferred tax assets or HEERIELSESAE (S - —F &) -

liabilities (2022: nil).
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ . EFREESTRARFMRE AR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID M AL
INDIVIDUALS
Remuneration of the directors disclosed pursuant to the Listing EEMEBRE EMARR - 2 EHEHIZE383(1)
Rules, section 383(1) of the Companies Ordinance and Part 2 ERAT (BEEEFZER) RS2 5H
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of FWT

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023
BE_T_=-f+_A=t+—HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
Fa RMR 3 38 ]
e EmiEs = #Et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTFT ARBTT AR¥TT

Executive directors: BITES -
Mr. Teng Hao (Note a) & (ffita) 270 = = 270
Mr. Xu Chengwu AR ST A 369 - 7 376

Independent non-executive B FHITESE -

directors:
Mr. Chen Wen Hua PROCEE S & 108 - - 108
Ms. Peng Xu UL 108 - — 108
Mr. Zheng Jin Min B A& 108 - - 108

963 = 7 970
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ . EFREETHARHFHRELA
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID BEEFMALe
INDIVIDUALS (continued)
11.1 Directors’ and Chief Executives’ emoluments (Continued) NMIEERESTRARHM =)
Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-_Z-_—#+-A=+-BILtEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind  contributions Total
e EER N
Be BEWREF K BT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors: WITES
Mr. Teng Hao (Note a) e vE S A& (Hata) 12 - - 12
Mr. Xu Chengwu AR A 359 - 7 366
Ms. Chen Sheng (Note b) ~ BRFt %&£ (7t b) 278 - 7 285

Independent non-executive B JEHITEE ¢

directors:

Mr. Chen Wen Hua PR SCEE S 103 - - 103

Ms. Peng Xu TRt 103 - - 103

Mr. Zheng Jin Min BEREAE 103 - - 103
958 - 14 972

Notes: Hist

(a)  Appointed as the executive director and the Chairman of the (@ RZTEZZF+ZA+HBEZEAHT

Board of Directors on 14 December 2022. EERESFEER -
(b)  Resigned on 14 December 2022. by MZZE-_—_F+-A+MHBET-

126 CHINAPARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED s BIUR 36 3¢ b4 B A5 B 24 )



11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group include one
director (2022: one director) for the year ended 31 December
2023, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11.1. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining four

11.

i 5 R W

EEREETRARFHMRESR
M ALxe

KEBREBE-E-_=#+=-"A=+—H
FFENRAEEsFMALZRE R (=ZE
CRER)EST BHENHINERE
RWF1L1-BEBTOE (ZE ==

(2022: four) individuals are as follows: M) AR FB@zEm T
2023 2022
—E-=5F —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR¥FIT AREFor
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 2RI R EWE T 1,928 1,757
Retirement scheme contributions RORET S 5R 38 30
1,966 1,787
The above individuals’ emoluments are within the following FlATHFEL TEE
bands:
Number of individuals
A8
2023 2022
2= —F-—
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 T T E 1,000,000 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T & 1,500,000 7 7T 1 1
4 4

No directors or the five highest paid individuals received any
emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil). No directors or
the five highest paid individuals have waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: nil).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2023 nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2022: nil).

12.

REBEEZZE-_="F+-_A=+—HLFE
N EEFdAAmEaTMATHERAER
WEE B S - EAMAREB KR IMAR
SESNEeSIEABERFE (22 =
m) RNEBE-_ST-_=F+-A=+—H1F
FEN EERRIEEaTMATHERE
HRAEREAMHNES (T __F : )

2
RIZE-=ZFRATESTFREZRATM
e - BEREERIAK - INERZIRMNE
B (ZE——F : &) -
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13.

14.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company of
RMB23,932,000 (2022: RMB15,140,000) and the weighted
average 1,426,366,000 (2022: 1,159,158,000) ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2023.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022 do not assume the exercise of the Company’s
share options because the exercise price of those share options
was higher than the average market price for shares.

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Carrying amount as at 1 January 2022 RZE-_—_F—A—HZEAEE

e

Depreciation

13.

14.

Transfer to investment properties (note 15) B =R EME (K171 15)

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 R-_ZE - —F+_A=+—HZEKHE

Carrying amount as at 1 January 2023
Depreciation

e

R-ZF-=F—-—A—RzKEE

Transfer from investment properties (note 15) B =R E W (K154 15)

Carrying amount as at 31 December 2023

The right-of-use assets represent prepaid land lease payments
in relation to the leasehold land is situated in the PRC and held
under a medium term lease.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s right-of-use assets
amounting to RMB4,680,000 (2022: RMB4,676,000) were
pledged to secure bank loans (note 31).

Ro-E-=F+-A=+—HZE@E

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED  H B 9% 35 S Ak % B A5 L A4

sREBGR
FRERNEEDRERARGERITE AR
IHERER AR 239032000 (T ==
F: AR¥15140,0007T) RHE-_T ==
F+ A=+ HLEFERBBHITEARK
hnkEF 1980 1,426,366,000 4% (ZF = =
1,159,158,000 /%) L@t & ©

HE_Z-_=FR-_Z-__F+-RF=4+—
BIEFENSRESEETEREAQT
MERESEIITE  RiELERENITER
R FEEHISERE -

HE_Z =GR _F_—_F+-_A=+—
AIFFE  SREFEEASRENEIER
|E_| o

ERERE

Prepaid land
lease payments
Attt
HERTA
RMB’000
AR T T

7,934
(184)
(756)

6,994

6,994
(186)
208

7,016

EREEERVNTEZAE L2 BN
THHEERE  RPRBORE -

RZBZ_=F+_A=+—H0 xEENE
FAEEEARKE4,680,000T(ZF ==
AR®4,676,0007) EER - LEUSRITE
K (HFEE3L) o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REME
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR®FIT AREFr
Investment properties KEYE 69,608 83,746
Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated RIFEFBRAKREIN CEEBEE B
statement of financial position can be summarised as follows: m
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FiT AEBFr
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERmEAE 83,746 78,131
Transferred (to)/from right-of-use assets & (Z) /BFE AEEE
(note 14) (K1t 14) (208) 756
Transferred (to)/from property, plantand 8 (&) ‘"B - MENRE
equipment (note 16) (Hat16) (10,532) 8,607
Depreciation e (3,398) (3,748)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-A=+—HBZ2EAEE 69,608 83,746
2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR¥TFIT AR For
Cost B 114,315 125,055
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2+ € KIRE (44,707) (41,309)
Carrying amount BREE 69,608 83,746
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

At 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, determined using income approach, which
also representing the recoverable amounts of the leasing
of factory premises CGU was RMB86,105,000 (2022:
RMB108,875,000). The fair value as at 31 December 2023
has been arrived based on a valuation carried out by an
independent professional qualified valuer Graval Consulting
Limited. No impairment loss was determined by comparing
carrying amounts of the investment properties, together with
the relevant leasehold improvement (note 16), to the above fair
value as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties are
categorised under Level 3 fair value hierarchy and determined
using income approach which capitalises the estimated rental
income stream, net of projected operating costs, using a
discount rate derived from market yields implied by recent
transactions in similar properties. When actual rent differs
materially from the estimated rents, adjustments have been
made to the estimated rental value.

The most significant inputs, all of which are unobservable, are
the estimated rental value and the discount rate. The estimated
rental value and discount rate are ranging from RMB13-
RMB15 (2022: RMB13-RMB15) per square meter and from
6%—6.5% (2022: 6%-6.5) as at year ended 31 December
2023 respectively. The estimated fair value increases if the
estimated rental value increases or if discount rate (market
yields) decline. The overall valuations are sensitive to all
assumptions. Management considers the range of reasonably
possible alternative assumptions is the greatest for rental values
and that there is an interrelationship between these inputs.

The investment properties represent self-owned factory
premises held under medium term leasehold land located in
the PRC and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans (note 31) are secured by
investment properties with a carrying value of RMB32,482,000
(2022: RMB36,242,000).

As at 31 December 2023, right-of-use assets that presented
within investment properties with a carrying amount value of
RMB3,080,000 (2022: RMB3,395,000).

15. ¥EME»)

R-BE-_=ZF+-_A=+—8 ' A£EK
EMEZAFEWFERBKAEET T
MEHERSELEEUNAIREESE) A
,AE%86m5mmE(_$:::¢-AE
#108,875,0007L) c R —_E = =F+=H
—t+—HZAFEDIERB T HE(EHEL
EECEBHEBRARET 2 EEEE - ¥
MREEESRBBREMECEEBENR
HEHEEYERE (W) B LR =%
TE=EFRZEZZF+ZRAR=+—HzZA
FEELRMETE °

REEBRENVEZAFEIBRE=ZBR
FESE  ERBAEERE - AERBELY
MR GRAERFHIOMEREX - Y
EFESRARIEERL  XHEKETEE
A - HERESBEHESHRERER -
A ESEL A -

EEAGASE (BB ATHER) B
HeERWBHEE - REE-ZE-_=F+-A
=t+—HLEFE FHiHeeBERUEEXRS
AMENTFEFEHFARARBIZTEARKIS
T(ZE2EZZF: ARBIBTEARKILS
) NN F6hECL% (ZEZ_F :6%%
65%) MaE etk BhIR R (Ti5
WEER) T hetAFES I - BEER
BEHFAEREHE - EHERATHENAE
AEBERBENEBEARA  MizSE A
B2 HFEAERE -

REDMERETEAUPHBENFRENESR
B - WiIRHERAERORITE -

RZZEZ=FF+_A=+—8 RTER (M
FE31) EREE A AR 32,482,000 (=
T —F: AR¥36242,0007T) 2% EY
EEH IR -

W-BE-=F+-"A=+—8 REEY
¥RV FRABEEEZEAEAARE
3,080,0007C (ZZE = —4F : AR#¥ 3,395,000
JT) °
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. M3 - BB R &R

Leasehold
improvement
Plant and Motor ~ Fummitureand ~ Constructionin  Construction in
Buildings ~ machineries vehicles equipment rogress rogress Total
BEME  BEWR
BF HERER RE  RERRG ] ] &t
B0 RIB00 B0 RIBO0 RIBO00 RIBO0 RIBO0
NEETT  AREFT AEEET AREfT AREF AREET AREFR
Cost E*
Asat 1 January 2022 NZEZZF-F-H 208062 29,648 3602 478 160,601 - 406,631
Additions RE - 882 1,950 12 28867 - 40,081
Transter to investment propertes (e /5 ERIRENENHL) (10731) - - - - - (10731
Transfer fiom net investment n leases (e 24) BRaRERERE Ay 4718 - - - - 4718
Addiion through acquisiion of ubsidiares e 4) - BRREHELARE (W) - 441 B 15 503 - 997
Disposals e - (8,009) (527) (69) - - (8609)
st 31 December 2022 and R-B-ZET2A=1-BR
1 January 2023 “2--E-A-f 202,009 34902 5063 5076 194971 - 442,061
Additions RE - 1% 0 131 280 17,709 19119
Transfr from mvestment propertes (a0t /5 ERBRENE (AL 12,765 - - - - - 12,765
Disposals ik (17,500 (5430) (859) (20) (2000 - (25,809
As at 31 December 2023 W8ZZ£+ZR=1-8 197,314 30,268 4401 5181 193,251 17,109 448136
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment RiERAE
Asat 1 January 2022 N-F-ZE-F-H 1812 17902 2586 429 118801 - 22310
Charge for the year Ergi 6374 148 19% w 1169%8 - 000
Transfer o investmen properties (e 15) ERIRENZ (VA D) (2.124) - - - - - (2.1
Witen back on disposal MERED - (3573) (501) (61) - - (413)
st 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2003 REBCZE+2A=1-BR
“§-5-f-R RO BE 08 4R 10 - BB
Chage forthe e ER W 0 Kl W 9% N 31H
Transer fom investment propetes (o 15 ERaRENZHZL) 2 - - - - - 23
Wiiten back on dispose REERER 72%) (5.424) (7% (16) 2100 - (1553)
Impairment loss hEEE 1946 i ) 8 1,685 - 3m
As at 31 December 2023 WZBIZE+IR=1-8 83276 12,742 1,962 4693 140,040 - 113
Net book amount BaRE
As at 31 December 2023 WZBIZE+ZR=1-8 114,038 17,526 2445 4% 521 17,109 205423
Asat 31 December 2022 RZE-ZE+ZR=1-8 19077 19,145 P 516 64412 - 2590
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. R - BE R @)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s buildings amounting to
RMB65,830,000 (2022: RMB72,231,000) were pledged to the
banks to secure the bank loans granted to the Group (note 31).

The management estimated the recoverable amounts and
recognised relevant impairment loss as a result of the general
economic uncertainty in the global market.

At 31 December 2023, the recoverable amounts of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, determined using
income approach, attributable to wigs CGU, clothing and
others CGU and fabric care, personal hygiene and home care
products CGU were RMB31,160,000, RMB156,220,000 and
RMB58,564,000 (2022: RMB42,030,000, RMB200,690,000
and RMB53,685,000) respectively. The recoverable amounts
as at 31 December 2023 has been arrived based on a value
in use estimation carried out by an independent professional
qualified valuer Peak Vision Appraisals Limited.

The recoverable amounts of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment are determined using income approach which
adopted the discounted cash flow method, net of future
cash outflow, using a discount rate of weighted average cost
of capital. When actual cash flow differs materially from the
estimated cash flow, adjustments have been made to the
estimated value in use.

The most significant inputs, all of which are unobservable, are
the selling price growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross profit
ratio and discount rate. The estimated value in use increases if
the estimated cash flow increases or if discount rate (weighted
average cost of capital) decline. The overall valuations are
sensitive to all assumptions. Management considers the range
of reasonably possible alternative assumptions is the greatest
for value in use and that there is an interrelationship between
these inputs.

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED  H B 9% 35 S Ak % B A5 L A4

R-ZEBE-_=ZF+-_A=+—H ' KX&£BA
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16. % - BE R @)

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
W-EZ= RZZE=——=

+=A=+-A t-A=1-A

CGU of wigs BRERSELEM
— selling price growth rate —EEERX 2%-3% 1%-3%
— terminal growth rate — R RE 3% 2.2%
— gross profit ratio —EF % 23%—-27% 27%—29%
— discount rate —BhIR & 16% 17.35%
CGU of clothing and others (including PRE R EMIR G ELESEN
cosplay costumes, sexy lingerie and (AEHERM - HRERAR
others) N E M)
— selling price growth rate —ERIERX 2%-3% 2%
— terminal growth rate —RIRIERE 3% 2.2%
— gross profit ratio —EF % 23%—-26% 30%-32%
— discount rate —BRIR & 17% 17.35%

CGU of fabric care, personal hygiene and K ¥)8 2 &R « (B A B RERE &

home care products REBREEEGRCEASN

— selling price growth rate —ERIERX 2.20%-5% 2%
— terminal growth rate —RIRIERE 2.20% 2.00%
— gross profit ratio —EM=E 30%-33% 30%
— discount rate —BRIR & 18.80% 18.60%
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and paid up
establishment capital/Registered
Company name and husiness  Type of legal entity capital
B/ BERTREME
NCEL ] B 3L 3 B ENERER #%/ BMES
Directly held
EER®
Win Profit Enterprise Holdings BVI Limited liability company 1 share of US$1
Limited RERNESE BREEAA I\REELIETRR
Unlock Bound Investments  BVI Limited liability company 1 share of US$1
Limited ERRAHE BREALA I\REELETRR
High Kelee Investment BVI Limited liability company 1 share of US$1
Holdings Limited
(“High Kelee") EERRHE EREMAF 1REELIETZBG
Indirectly held
MERH
Partytime Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited liability company, ~ RMB142,000,000
(“Partytime Group”)* registered as a
wholly foreign owned
enterprise under
PRC law
EE L EEERA A hE BREMERE  BE  AKEK142,0000007T
(DEELEE]) hEDEREM AN
BELE
Partytime Costume The PRC Limited liability company, RMB70,000,000
& Lingerie registered as a
(Yiwu) Factory wholly foreign owned
(“Yiwu Partytime”)* enterprise under
PRC law
EEMRHRHERLE  FH BEREMLRA RE  ARK700000007
([&SkH]) hEEZ M AN
BELE
China Partytime Culture Hong Kong Limited liability company 1 ordinary share
(Hong Kong) Limited
HEIRE L (B) BE BREMAH 1 REER
BRATF

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED  H B 9% 35 S Ak % B A5 L A4

17. REBATRZE#R

R =R _TE-_—_F+_-_A=+—
BZTXEMBATFEBNT :

Equity interest
attributable to the Group
FREE G RE
2023 2022
B T
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
(note 40)
(40
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

w]

Principal activities

FERE

[nvestment holding
REER

[nvestment holding

REER
Investment holding

REZR

Manufacturing and sale of
cosplay costumes, cosplay
wigs and sexy lingerie and
leasing factory premises

BENERS - BENE
RERMBAKNLE
KHERBERE

Manufacturing and sale of
cosplay costumes and
sexy lingerie and leasing
factory premises

AEMERSRERAK
WEERHERBEHE

Investment holding and
sale of cosplay costumes,
cosplay wigs and sexy
lingerie
REERKAGTERM -
ABHERE IR
KEEERBEE



17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Company name

LFER

Hmda Culture International
Co., Limited (“Hmda")
EZEEBERAT

([Ex#])

Huacan (Zhejiang) Culture
Media Co., Ltd*

Zhejiang Kelee Technology
Co., Ltd.*
(“Zhejiang Kelee")

AR ERAT
(MTE )

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and business
30100
Akl

Hong Kong

&b

The PRC

PE

The PRC

E

* For identification purposes only

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17.

Issued and paid up

capital/Registered
Type of legal entity capital
ERTREBMRE
EARRER "%/ gREF

Limited liability company 100 ordinary shares

BREERT 100 &AM

Limited liability company, -
registered as a
wholly foreign owned
enterprise under
PRC law

BREALNT  REF -
BEREMANEE
BEfE

Limited liability company,
registered as a
wholly foreign owned
enterprise under
PRC law
BREERA  RER AKEK10,0000007
BEETMAINEE
BEiE

RMB10,000,000

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders of the Company
was RMB202,161,000 (2022: RMB187,906,000).

i 5 R W

REEATGICE#R &)

Equity interest
attributable to the Group  Principal activities
FREEERE TERB
2023 2022
Zg-= i S
15% 75%  Trademark authorization
services
AR R R
75% 75%  Sale of trademark processed
costumes
BERERE
51% 51%  Research and development,
(note 40)  manufacturing and sale
of | fabric care, personal
hygiene and home care
products
(Hist40) WE BEREERWE

REE  HARRER
RREERERER

EREJIHEERATIEFELAEELRF
EXERBNAREEEFEIRAD Z
ARABIMEAR - EFRBFHAEE A
BRElzEHSBHBREBENE -

RZEZ=F+ZA=+—8 " 7 #
DIKTFTARABRRNBHEEER/AR
202,161,000 (ZEZZF : AR¥
187,906,0007T) °
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The Group includes one subsidiary with material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”), the details and the summarised
financial information, before intragroup eliminations, are as

follows:

Proportion of ownership interests and
voting rights held by the NCI

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue
Total expenses

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Profit attributable to NCI

Net cash flows generated from operating
activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

17. RIBBEARIZCEE 2

REEMA-—BAEEREERER ([FFF
Perges ) B RRE - HFBERMBEERE
ZOETSBEEEHEZANOT

High Kelee
2023 2022
—E_=HE —EF-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
IR R T IS EA R
B B B e 7SR 49% 49%
MBEE 42,880 18,923
EMENEE 22,087 25,435
mEaE (14,350) (4,990)
IEREBAE (566) (1,012)
BEFE 50,051 38,356
JEVERR R 2 BRI B 24,525 18,794
gz 84,927 18,555
X 45 (73,231) (18,418)
FRRF R E A2 ERA
11,696 137
FE 12 G 45 25 JE {1 55 ) 5,731 67
LEEFBZREREFHE
2,955 6,712
KREZHAZREREFHE (1,098) (8,272)
MEFSNE (TR ZBEERE
ikl 5,000 (2,000)
ReRBLEEWLIN CRD)
ikl 947 (3,559)

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ B 9k 38 SC b #% )8t A [ A )



18.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Cost of investments in associates
Share of post-acquisition profits and
other comprehensive loss, net of

dividends received

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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18. REIEATIMER

2023 2022

—E-=5F —=E-_=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
REE = R BIMIRE KA 1,845 1,845

FEAGUR B 18 m A N At 2 E &S 1E -
kB B B

(293) (247)
1,552 1,598

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, all
of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market
prices are not available, which in the opinion of the directors
principally affected the results or net assets of the Group as at

31 December 2023.

Country/place of
Form of business ~ incorporation and
Name of associate structure business
ERBIRER
RELRER PEERYS BR/
Yunyou Smart Cultural Tourism (Zhejiang) Company ~ Incorporated The PRC
Ltd."* (“Zhejiang Yunyou")
ERBERGID) ARAR (DHIER]) B e
Hangzhou Yunyou Smart Technology Company Ltd.**  Incorporated The PRC
(“Hangzhou Yunyou”)
RMNERBERRARAA (MMNER]) AV e
Guizhou Yunyou Future Tourism Company Ltd.** Incorporated The PRC
(“Guizhou Yunyou")
EMNERRIURARAR ([ENER) AT HE
Jinhua BaoBian Technology Company Ltd.** Incorporated The PRC
FENERRARLA EdiA e
* Hangzhou and Guizhou Yunyou were 100% wholly owned by

Zhejiang Yunyou (together, “Yunyou Group”).

s For identification purposes only

ATIIRESGEERRNFSE  EZS
BEARERETSHRENIFLTARERE
EEZRARFERELFIBXEAEER

TEC=F+ZA=THMEEIFEE -
Particulars of issued and % of interest ~Principal
paid up capital held  activity
BRTR A ER
BREFHE Balt TEEE
Contributed RMB5,000,000 as 32% Inactive

paid up capital (2022: 32%)
18 ARE5,000,000 TIEAS R RN% TREH
EX (ZBZZF:30%)

Contributed RMB900,000 as
paid up capital
HEARE0,000 L EBHRER

Contributed RMB500,000 as
paid-up capital
HEARE500,000 T EBHRER

32% Inactive

(2022: 32%)

32%
(ZEBZZE:30%)

32%

(2022: 32%)

32%
(ZEZ2%:309%)

Inactive

LEXH

49%

(2022: 49%)

49%

(ZE-ZF :149%)

Inactive

LEXH

5 MMERRENEFANIZEHE2ERS
(e[ EREE]) -

ANNUALREPORT 2023 =& =44 Ht



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information of the
associate which is accounted for using the equity method:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Revenue
Total expenses

Loss before income tax
Income tax expenses

Loss after income tax

mEEE
FRBEE
REAE
FRBEE

FEE

Yoz
B

BR P15 7% Al 18

PRS B X

RATERRER

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the investments in

Yunyou Group is set out below:

Total net assets of associates
Proportion of ownership interests held by
Group

Carrying amount of the investments in
associates in the consolidated financial
statements

BENBFEERR

18. RBEELAFMER &)

RARDEARNEE R E
EHIEMT

2023
—B-=HF
RMB’000
AR®TFT

4,426

(65)

4,361

2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
AR®FT

(127)

(127)

(127)

FRHBAHEERRE
EEGHETBRMT -

2023
—E-=

RMB’000
AR®FT

4,361

RE B PR A AL )

ONSNR e e N
REREE

32%

BT

1,396

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ B 9k 38 SC b #% )8t A [ A )

B B 75 B BB

2022
—m

[ = S —

RMB'000
AR TFT

4,543

(55)

4,488

2022

RMB'000
ARETT

(500)

(500)

(500)

R B E R

2022
—E-F
RMB’000
ARETFT
4,488

32%

1,436
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18. RBIELAFTIMESR &)
Yunyou Group is principally engaged in cultural tourism ENEBRFEEFRBRYEXIRER
development and related project planning consultation EREEBEREABAES  AXE
business in PRC, is a strategic partner for development of BEEBEAEULERNEREERME -

the Group’s cultural products in Yiwu.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TR EAEEE R IEEERE QA
information of the Group’s associates that are not BB S E R
individually material:

2023 2022
—E-=F —g-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT AR TT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually 4R & BA ISR R A ERIIEE R

immaterial associates in the consolidated B & A 5 Ay B R E &
financial statements 156 162
2023 2022
—E"= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TFT ARET T

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of 7N %= [& i {5 3% B 4 A B Y

those associates'’: 4BEE
Loss for the year FANEE (6) (52)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEEERE (6) (52)
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The major changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill result
from the acquisition of High Kelee. The net carrying amount of
goodwill can be analysed as follows:

19. GOODWILL 19. &

AEREHENTIELEHFESL KEHIgh
Kelee » P B BRENFER DMTAAT -

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFr
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—B/EEFE 8,369 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40) Wi — M B A B (A7t 40) - 8,369
Net carrying amount at 31 December RT+-A=1+—BHNEEFE 8,369 8,369
At end of year RER
Gross carrying amount BRmaE 8,369 8,369
Accumulated impairment RETRE -
8,369 8,369

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any impairment loss,
is allocated to the cash generating unit of fabric care, personal
hygiene and home care products.

The recoverable amount for the cash generating unit was
determined based on value-in-use calculations covering a
detailed five-year budget plan followed by an extrapolation
of expected cash flows at the growth rates stated below. The
growth rates reflect the long-term average growth rates for the
product lines of the cash generating unit.

As the recoverable amount of cash generating unit of fabric
care, personal hygiene and home care products exceed
the carrying amount as at 31 December 2023, no goodwill
impairment loss was recognised and included (2022: nil).

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value in use of the cash generating units above, the Group’s
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates
and could cause the cash generating units’ carrying amounts
to exceed their recoverable amounts. However, the estimate
of recoverable amount of the Group’s cash generating unit
of fabric care, personal hygiene and home care products is
particularly sensitive to the discount rate applied.

?ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@(ﬁiﬁﬁﬁfﬁgﬂé)"HEEZY
Y5 2ERE  AABREENKEBREE
Euufﬁiﬁiiﬁ °

EE%FEEVIE’J—M&@%%ﬁﬁﬂfi&%ﬁ
AnFRAFENEREENE  ARET
ﬁlli'a‘%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂfﬁimiﬁm c IR E
REE S ELBUEMGHRPFIHERE -

RS ZER  EABSZERELRER
5%%%IE§%%%F$$ME’JT@H&Z%§Et
B-E-_=F+-_A=+—HWEAE &
MEEALGTABREREBE (S - _F:
) o

GKETLIRcELBNEREERME
AMHRES  AEEEEER AL TMER
] E At 7] BE B 5 B % 28 B H R B2 4 5 3
AR RAEERREELSNUNKREE
iﬂETW@ CRR o AT AEERKRYB
RER AABREENRRERRERER
ﬁ%@i%hT%@iﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬂg%
XA R E
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20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

As at 1 January 2022

Addition through acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 40)

As at 31 December 2022 and
31 December 2023

Accumulated amortisation
As at 1 January 2022
Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2023

Net book amount
As at 31 December 2023

As at 31 December 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2%

RZE-_—_F—H—H

EBWRENBRARIRNE
(Ba£40)

RZE-_—F+=-A
—t-BR-ZT-_=%F
+=—A=+—H

Frtis
RZE-_—_F—H—H
FATH

RZZTEZ=F+=A
=t—-Bk=-ZT-_=F
—A—H

FANZL

W-EZZ

+=A=+—H

R R E
BR-2_=

+=RA=+—H

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative and other operating expenses” on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

20. EHRE

Trademark
EiR
RMB'000
ARETFT

12,713

12,713

3,684
6,374

10,058

2,655

12,713

2,655

Sr T A 0 e e B G
Patent Total
57 st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFr
- 12,713
6,301 6,301
6,301 19,014
- 3,684
525 6,899
525 10,583
1,260 3,915
1,785 14,498
4,516 4,516
5,776 8,431

FRABEHAAGABRaREM2EK
BERPITREREMEERZIA -
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21. INVENTORIES 21. &8
2023 2022
—E-= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR %TiT ARETF T
Raw materials R % 11,753 14,470
Work in progress RS 1,783 3,069
Finished goods 2K G 9,802 9,233
23,338 26,772
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ES REMEBIRIE
2023 2022
—E-= g
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR¥TiT ARETFT
Trade receivables Ho5ERRE
— from third parties —-REE=F 42,034 53,246
Less: ECL allowance B TEHEEEERE (4,867) (1,594)
37,167 51,652
Deposits, prepayments and Re  RAARER
other receivahles Hth Bl &RIE
Prepayments TafRIE 14,257 6,719
Other tax receivables b R 5K 860 1,442
Deposits biodra 1,041 3,197
Other receivables H b e Uy Fx 18 7,189 7,070
23,347 18,428
60,514 70,080
The Group usually requires advance deposits from its REBBEERERFBEAINILE - RN
customers. Before accepting any new customer, the Group WA E AR - AEBEARNI A
applied an internal credit assessment policy to assess the BRAGECREPHERE= - FEHRE
potential customer’s credit quality. The credit period is generally BASEQQR(ZZEZ—F 1 456F60K) ° il
for a period of 45 to 90 days (2022: 45 to 60 days). Overdue HEHAaREEETHEZ - B HEREK
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade ERETE °

receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EHRHEMEBIEHRE 2
An aged analysis of the trade receivables, based on the invoice REZAHMNE SEWGIE (IRBHREER
date and net of ECL allowance, is as follows: B EEME) MERE DT T
2023 2022
—E-=F —E=-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AR TFT

0-30 days 0E30K 17,261 31,352
31-60 days 31E 60K 10,512 6,002
61-90 days 61 E90 K 4,819 9,055
91-365 days 91 & 365K 4,107 5,243
Over 365 days BB 365K 468 -
37,167 51,652
As at 31 December 2023, ECL allowance of RMB4,867,000 R-ZB-_=F+-A=+—8 2HERED
(2022: RMB1,594,000) was recognised. EEBEREARKEA486700T(ZE=-—

F: AR¥1,594,0007T) ©

The ECL rate for trade receivables as at 31 December 2023 R_E-=FR-_FTE-_—F+-_HA=+—H
and 2022 was determined as follows: ME S EWGIETEHREEFBL RXETNT
2023 2022
—=E-= ==
0-30 days 0£ 30K 2.91% 1.26%
31-60 days 31E 60K 4.52% 1.89%
61-90 days 61 £90K 6.93% 2.92%
91-365 days 91 & 365K 20.28% 4.54%
Over 365 days 38 365 K 90.00% 100%
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables, is as
follows:

At 1 January Kn—H—H
Amount written off during the year FRMELER

ECL allowance recognised during the year

At 31 December

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liguidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier. None of the trade receivables that have been written
off is subject to enforcement activities. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

23. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

FRDHANBRREEBERESE

Rt+tZA=+—H

22. B REMBIHRIE 2
BN EN BN EEEREGEDIE

AT

2023 2022

—E-=5F — T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT AREFT
1,594 19,355
= (19,187)
3,273 1,426
4,867 1,594

MEEBMBREEATDYRENHRER
W ERIERN#EAK (NEEAZB BRI
BWERT  HEZHERFACAHMEEM
FUREERE)  AEEBMEESE
WOROR - B B 5 1 IR R 310417 E) TR
B o NSRBI WL L FAERR A EAEA S
BRI E M (S B IE R IE I o

23. BAFHFARGBHEMEE

2023 2022

—E-= —E -4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FTT AREFIT

Unlisted security investments (note) FELMBHKRE (K1) 908 6,000

Note: On 23 December 2022, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement for the acquisition of 15% equity interests in
Diamond Virtue Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary 18 & 4%
ZEEEBRIE AR AT (collectively the “target group”), at a
base consideration of RMB6,000,000.

B R-ZE_—F+-_A=-+=8 K&EHz
Uy B& Diamond Virtue Limited & & 2 & Kt B
NE(FEIEREE]D K 15% RIERT AR
W ERE - EARE A AR 6,000,000

JC °
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23. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

24.

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The movement of the financial asset at FVTPL during the year

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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23. BLOFEAARZHEMEE 2

FARRFEFABZNEREEZSH

is set out below: R -

2023 2022

—E-=5F — T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARTFiT AREFr
Fair value at 1 January R—A—B2Z2A¥E 6,000 -
Fair value at acquisition g iea/NS T =] = 6,000
Fair value loss NFE{EEE (5,092) -
Fair value at 31 December Rt A=+—HZRA¥E 908 6,000

The fair value of the unlisted security investment has been
measured as described in note 42.6. 2 AR E o

NET INVESTMENT IN LEASES 24, HEREREAE

The maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments

FLETBEBHFREZAFECKRKEI260

MEHEZ RAMREENKEKFIAZE

receivables from finance leases are as follows: RS T -
2023 2022
—E-=HF —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FiT AREFor
Gross investment in leases HERE R
— Within one year ——F R — 7,050
— After first year but within second years —FE—FEEE_FR - -
- 7,050
Less: Unearned finance income W AR BRER A U - (302)
Net investment in leases HERE FRE = 6,748
Present value of investment in leases HEREZRE
— Within one year ——FR = 6,748
— After first year but within second years  —F—FERKE_FR - -
- 6,748
Less: portion due within one year B ETARBEE L
included under current assets —F AR EE D - (6,748)

Portion due after one year included under
non-current assets

FAERBEBEZ
— RIS

ANNUALREPORT 2023 —2 " =4R4EH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

Net investment in leases represented:

24. NET INVESTMENT IN LEASES (continued) 24. HEREBR#E )

HEKREFEREK
2023 2022
—EC-=HF —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFT AEREFT

Gross amount of net investment in leases FTHE R & & /558 - 6,885
ECL allowance on net investment in leases SR E FRENTEHEZEEEREE - (137)
- 6,748

Portion of premises is for own use and remaining portion is
subleased to third parties for rental purposes.

As at 31 December 2023, the subleases are under four
sublease arrangements (2022: the subleases are under nine
sublease arrangements).

As at 31 December 2023, the net investment in leases
represent four sublease arrangements entered by the Group
with the sub-lessees in respect of factory premises typically run
for an initial period of three years and four years (2022: nine
sublease arrangements entered by the Group with the sub-
lessees in respect of factory premises typically run for an initial
period of three years and four years). The sub-leases do not
include contingent rentals and variable lease payments. The
subleases are entered with the same terms of the respective
head-leases and the gain from the recognition of the net
investments in lease from the head leases is included in “other
income” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

BERMEBORBRTIHBOBIETE=ZT
FRE MR &

RZE-_=ZF+_A=+—8 EHHBEED
RENEERALZE(ZZE-_—_F: LEEd
ZHE)ETT ©

RZZFBZ=F+ZA=+—H HEREF
BIEASEEESAARMER A PUIEEHE
T BEVREAB=FRNF (2=
F:AREESHEARKER L IEEHE
ﬁ?‘?? BEVGHEB=-FRNTF) - &M
EVEBFEIAES RAISHENK - &
Tﬁ 5 Th R AR R S AR R FRET 3 - i
REREBRBEZHEREFBREZEFTA
REBRkEMEERGEREBE T Z[HAU
Ao

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ B 9k 38 SC b #% )8t A [ A )



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 7 B 5 e 2 M

24. NET INVESTMENT IN LEASES (continued) 24. HEXRERH »)
The movements in the ECL allowance of net investment in HEREFEMNEHEERBRAENE
leases, is as follows: m
2023 2022
—E-=5F —ET-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ABR¥TFIT ANEBTFT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 137 436

25.

Reversal of ECL allowance during the year

FRADHIANEREEBBRE

BETEHREEEERE (137) (299)
At 31 December R+=ZRBR=+—H - 137
DEFERRED TAX 25. iEERIA
The movement during the year in the deferred tax is as follows: FRNEEHIEMNZEBNOT
2023 2022
—E-=F ==
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETFT

At 1 January
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40)

At 31 December

R—A—H 23,353 26,893
MR R (B2 10) (2,136) (2,528)
Y i — IR 8 B (a2 40) - (1,012)
W+=ZA=+—H 21,217 23,353
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25. RIERIF (=)
ERNERDELCHBELEHREHNT :

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The following are deferred tax balances recognised and
movements during is as follows:

Impairment loss

on assets Others Total
HFERESH Hth et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR Fr AR TFr ARETF T
At 1 January 2022 AT —F—AF—H 27,159 (266) 26,893
Recognised in profit or loss RIEBRER(AZ10)
(note 10) (2,659) - (2,659)
At 31 December 2022 and at A = ——
1 January 2023 +ZA=+—8K
—ET-_=9—AF—H 24,500 (266) 24,234
Recognised in profit or loss RIBRER (M7 10)
(note 10) (2,451) - (2,451)
At 31 December 2023 B-EZZ=
+=-B=+—H 22,049 (266) 21,783
Fair Value
adjustment on
business
comhination
Exasm
AFEAR
RMB'000
ARETFT
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) UREE I B A =) (K72t 40) (1,012)
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) RIEBRER(KaZ10) 131
At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 RZEBE-_—_F+-A=+—8K
—E-=F—H—H (881)
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) RIEBRER (H:Z10) 315
At 31 December 2023 W-E-_=f+"HA=+—H (566)
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEE E
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBEEE

As at 31 December 2023, no deferred income tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of
the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in the PRC for
which deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB201,091,000 as at 31 December
2023 (2022: RMB200,271,000).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash in hand

Restricted deposits 32 BR 17 3K

Included in bank balances and cash of the Group of
approximately RMB34,233,000 (2022: RMB25,439,000) as at
31 December 2023 are bank balances denominated in RMB
placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency. The conversion of RMB denominated deposits placed
in banks in the PRC in foreign currencies and remittance of
such foreign currencies denominated bank balances and cash
out of the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2023, some bank deposits amounted
to RMB615,000 (2022: Nil) were restricted to banks for
the guarantee of the forward foreign exchange contracts.
All restrictions on bank deposits will be removed upon the
settlement of those forward foreign exchange contracts.

RITHEBR R TFHRERE

25.

26.

i 5 R W

BRERIA 7)
RSP BERRREZRNESEEOT
2023 2022
—E-=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ANREFT
21,783 24,234
(566) (881)
21,217 23,353

R-ZEBE-_=F+-A=+—H WEHRAE
ERPERY B AR EMMNTENT ~
KIEHBFIER 2 MR ERELEEH -
KRABEERE  ZEWBATRNA RER
PRAEDIREBEFN RZE_=F+=
B=Z+—8 ERHPBRMBARZERESEH
BEYWEBRILBERECEHEHEaBE2ERE
B@mA YA ARK201,091,0007T (=
T4 AR¥200,271,0007T) °

SRITHRGRAS®

2023 2022

—E-=HF — T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFiT ARBEFr
48,841 47 551
615 -
49,456 47 551

RZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H st AKEE
RIRTT IR & 4 %2 40 A R # 34,233,000 7T
—E-—F: AR¥D25439,0007T) AFR
R BEEIRITRAARESHEMNIRI T4 -
AREABTAIERRIBRER - §EFHREF
RITHARBFRABAINE - UEEZE
ASNEEHERIRITES AR eENAE - 15
JH38 ST B RS 98 0 B A8 B8 SN BE B I AR Rl
KRG - RTINS IRER S BRI 717 30F =&
BT B A R BRI B, o

RZZE-_=F+-_A=+—H8 HX9R1THF
HARBGE1500T (ZE-—F ' T) BE
IRERSMES LI ER - ZIRITRS - FTEH
IRITIFRABR B AR BRSNE S 4045 B 18 HEUH ©
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27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. B REMEMRIE
2023 2022
—E-= =
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARETT

Current: mE
Trade payables HOEARE
— To third parties —ERNTE=F 9,109 4,755
Accrued charges and other payables B REMEMRIE
— Salaries payables —ENEHe 6,943 6,423
— Other tax payables —H A E R 2,813 1,054
— Other payables — H fth B F0E 3,477 2,168
— Consideration payable —ERRE 7,318 -
20,551 9,645
29,660 14,400
Non-current: JERED -
— Other payables —H b B 5RIB - 600
29,660 15,000
The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging AEBHERSTAEBEN T15E260KH
from 15 to 60 days. An aged analysis of the trade payables, EHE - ERBREQHNE S EMNREERR
based on the invoice date, is as follows: DM :
2023 2022
—E_-= g
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TiT ARETFT
0-30 days 0&E 30K 9,109 4,755
28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. &R
2023 2022
== ==
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETFT

Contract liabilities arising from receiving WEEMER B EENEANEE
deposits of manufacturing orders 45 301
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 28. AR @)

When the Group receives a deposit before the production WASEEREEFBR GBI KNIZS - &%
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities REXVFHRKREEEGHNEE BEEA0ME
at the start of a contract until the revenue recognised on the R BRIZEEEAL -

contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

All the outstanding contract liabilities at beginning of the year
have been recognised as revenue during the year.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 29.

R—HA—HA®KHEE
Wi — M B~ (A7)
FAREN D FEZ

Carrying amount as at 1 January

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note)

Fair value change on contingent
consideration

Transfer to consideration payable

ERERMRE

Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBKKEE

RENZMAREEANBBECDRFARE
R -

2023 2022
—EZ= -

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFIT AREFor

4,758 -

- 4,304

2,560 454

(7,318) -

- 4,758

Note: In July 2022, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%

equity interests in High Kelee for the purpose of acquiring
51% equity interests of Zhejiang Kelee. Also, the Group and
the vendors of High Kelee entered into a profit guarantee
agreement, pursuant to which the Group shall pay cash up to
the value of HK$8,828,000 (equivalent to RMB7,840,000) (the
“Compensation”) to the vendors on or before 30 June 2024,
if Zhejiang Kelee could fulfill the condition either (i) the profits
after taxation could reach RMB10,000,000 for each of the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 respectively, or (ii) the
aggregated profits after taxation could reach RMB20,000,000
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 (the “Profit
Guarantee”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company, this
profit guarantee is for the exchange of control for High Kelee and
therefore considered as contingent consideration payable.

If Zhejiang Kelee is not able to meet the Profit Guarantee, the
vendor has jointly and severally, unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed to compensate the Group, with the payment of the
shortfall between the Profit Guarantee and the Compensation.
The additional consideration or compensation shall be settled in
cash.

At 31 December 2022, the fair value of the consideration
payable is determined by the independent professional qualified
valuer Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, by applying income
approach on the estimated profit from Zhejiang Kelee for the two
years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023 and the probability
of occurrence of each expected earning scenario.

HaE -

RZZE-—F+E A ANEETHKWKEHigh
Kelee 100% A #E - LA UG B& T I # 9 51%
A% HEE o 4N - RN E[E B2 High Kelee 2 B 75
LaMREBERE B AEBER-Z
ZHFEANAZtTASZAEIMEF XN &S
18,828,000 2B & (HHEN AR
7,840,0007t) ([#1E]) « AT & M LTI H)
BEKATHEE: WEBET-__FR=
T-ZF+-_AZ+—BULEESF B
Tk F e o pliER AR 10,000,000
FMBEE T _FR_T_=F+=
A=+—RHLFE BE%EFERE]E
z= A R % 20,000,000t (M@ FRE]D o &
NEIEEBRB  &mMIRE Th Bt High
Kelee =ML - B I 1R & FE AT =k
ARE -

T WA R BEZROENRFE - EH DK
(B Ko 8 51~ 4 A B S AT 3R 4 AR RE 1R AR
SEELME WDEFREE/MEZ
MHZRE - BIMERHERUNRSEN -

R-ZE-_—F+-F=+—H ERNRE
MAFEHBLEESERGHEMSHE
HEARATMIAFANEE S -
EN_E_ZF+_A=Z+—BLMEAE
B a5 RS BEPAFIERZ B EH
EEBWAEETE °
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES

The maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments are

as follows:

Total minimum lease payments:
— Within one year
— After first year but within second years

Future finance charges on lease liabilities

Present value of lease liabilities

Present value of minimum lease payments
— Within one year
— After first year but within second years

Less: portion due within one year
included under current liabilities

Portion due after one year included under
non-current assets

Movements in lease liabilities during the year:

At 1 January
Payment of lease liabilities
Finance costs

At 31 December

30. HERAR

ABBREENTHOBHE D

2023
—E-=HF
RMB’000
ABR¥TFIT
SIERAENRARE
—— R _
—F—FRLEFRN -
HEEBZARKMEER -
HEaRBEZRAE =
SEAENRERE
——FR =
- F—FENEE-FR -
B EFARBEEZ
—FE R HID =
FFAERBEEZ
—F BB HED _
HeaETFrRzE
2023
—=E=-=
RMB’000
ABRTFIT
n—A—H 6,161
HEBBNR (6,416)
B E A A 255
R+t-ZA=+—H =

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ B 9k 38 SC b #% )8t A [ A )
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2022

=

RMB'000
AR TFT

6,416

6,416
(255)

6,161
6,161

6,161

(6,161)

2022

== —

RMB'000
ARETT

11,900
(6,314)
575

6,161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. LEASE LIABILITIES (continuead)
As at 31 December 2023, lease liabilities amounting to RMB nil
(2022: RMB6,161,000) are effectively secured by the related
underlying assets as the rights to the leased asset would be
reverted to the lessor in the event of default by repayment by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the total
cash outflows for the leases are RMB6,492,000 (2022:
RMB6,386,000).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group has entered
into leases for an office and certain factory premises.

Financial statements items of

Types of right-of-use assets right-of-use assets included in
EREEEMRTA

EHERERD MM BEREE

Factory premises in PRC Right-of-use assets

HERE EREEE

Office Not applicable as short term

lease recognition exemptions

under HKFRS 16 applied
REEBNBHREENE 165

BEHEEHRAE

TEA

3

b

D
it

i 5 R W

30. HE& T\ »#)

R-F_=Ff+-_A=+—RH HEEER
ZTARE(ZZE -4 :6,161,0007T) &
BREARBEEEEER  REZMEAEE
REEEN HEEENRN SR HEALK
[g] o

RNEBEZE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—HItEE -
HEMR R H 258 AARYE,492,0007T
—E-—F: AR#¥6,386,0007T) °

@i_;:—$&_311¢+:ﬂ5+—
KBRS RERE TR SRS -

Range of
remaining
lease term  Particulars
FERAM
@E #1E

lyears o Contains an option to
renew the lease after the
end of the contract
1F o EHNEREEE
TELE@ ﬁz’f%é

8months e Only subject to monthly
fixed rental payment

8EA o EFFAXNECES
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

31.

As at 31 December 2022

Financial statements items of
right-of-use assets included in
ERAREEMRA

KB EREREREE

Types of right-of-use assets

ERERERD

Factory premises in PRC Right-of-use assets

HEHE EREEE

Office Not applicable as short term
lease recognition exemptions
under HKFRS 16 applied

/NG BEEBHBRELE 16
BEHEERRAE
TiEA

The Group considered that no extension option or termination
option would be exercised at the lease commencement date.

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank loans, secured RITER - BIEA
As at 31 December 2023, bank loans bore interest at 3.45% to

3.65% (2022: 4.10% to 4.35%) per annum.

The bank loans were secured by certain assets of the Group
(notes 14, 15 and 16) as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

30.

Number of
leases

HEBE

31.

HERR®
R-ZEB__F+-_A=+—H
Range of
remaining
lease term  Particulars
FErEm
#E HS
2years o Contains an option to
renew the lease after the
end of the contract
2F e BRRREEE
EEW\E%
8months e Only subject to monthly
fixed rental payment
A o EFRHEAXNETEHES

REERAH  AEER BB TETEE
AERB RN IEFRE -

SRITER
2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
8,180 71,930

RZEBE-_=ZF+_A=+—8 RITER
#B3.45%E3.65% (ZEZ_F :410% &
4.35%) )EFEFIRFHE o

R-BE-_=FR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H "
RITEFUAREEETEE (MIsE14 - 15 %
16) fEHEH# -
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32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has the following forward
foreign exchange contracts in place and their major terms are

as follows:
31 December 2023

Notional amount

£ 34 ]

US$200,000
200,000 7T
US$300,000
300,000 7T

US$400,000
400,000 7T

US$500,000

500,000 % 7T

US$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

Settlement date

ZEAM

25 March 2024 to
17 May 2024

—E_WE=A-+HBZE

—E-mFRA+EHR

23 February 2024
—T_NE-_A=+=H

22 January 2024
—E-WE-_AZ+=H

22 January 2024 to
5 June 2024

—E_NF—-AZ+HZ

—E-WFEAAA

26 March 2024
—E-NFE=A=+<H

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values. The change of fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Forward foreign exchange contracts entered into by the Group
with banks were measured at FVTPL. The fair value of these
contracts has been measured as described in note 42.6.

i 5 R W

R2.MEEMIR

RZBE-Z=F+-A=+—H ~"&EBEHMN
TREINES L HEBEZWT

—E_=%+=-RA=+—H

Term Forward rate

E1 EHES

312 to 367 days RMB6.97 to
RMB7.08/USD

312& 367 K ARE697 TE
ARME7.087T,/ ETT

365 days RMB6.95/USD

365K ARKE695TT ET

250 days RMB6.94/USD

250K ARBE6947T,/ % 7T

250 to 367 days RMB6.94 to
RMB7.11/USD

250 E 367 K AREE6MATE
ARBET711T,E7T

308 days RMB7.06/USD

308 X ARKETO06TT,/ET

PTETANBRIMITEANE BOHRF
BER  HRREQAFEEHAE - AFE
HEY AR N IB iR

AEBBRITRILNERPINER HRAF
EFf ANEmAE - ZF /NN R FEIRW
426 PTGt E -
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33. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised: EE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2023 RZE-_—FR-_FT-=
+=-—A=+—H
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE

As at
Issue

Exercise of share options (note b)

As at 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Issue

1 January 2022
of shares by placing (note a)

of shares by placing (note c)

R-ZZF-—F%—A—H
BBEERTRND (HiFa)
TR AE (AiF D)

RZEBE-_—F+-A=+—8K
—E-=F—H—H
BRI ERITRD (Witc)

33. &
No. of shares RMB’000
Bin®HE ARBEFor
1,560,000,000 12,313
1,077,267,600 8,847
170,000,000 1,463
15,000,000 138
1,262,267,600 10,448
215,453,520 1,886
1,477,721,120 12,334

As at 31 December 2023 RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H

The ordinary shares of the Company has a par value of
HK$0.01 each.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 15 July 2022, 170,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at a price of HK$0.161 per share in respect
of the Company’s acquisition of High Kelee (note 40). Portion
amount of HK$1,700,000 (equivalent to RMB1,463,000)
representing the par value of the ordinary shares, were credited
to the Company’s share capital account. The remaining portion
amounting HK$25,670,000 (equivalent to RMB22,094,000)
were credited to the Company’s share premium account.

On 27 October 2022, options were exercised to subscribe for
15,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of HK$3,000,000, of which HK$150,000 (equivalent to
RMB138,000) was credited to share capital and the balance
of HK$2,850,000 (equivalent to RMB2,635,000) was credited
to the share premium account. As a result of the exercise of
options, amount of RMB1,097,000 has been transferred from
the share option reserve to the share premium account.

On 29 March 2023, 215,453,520 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at a price of HK$0.155 per share by placing,
according to a placing agreement under general mandate signed
on 17 March 2023. Portion amount of HK$2,155,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,886,000) representing the par value of the ordinary
shares, were credited to the Company’s share capital account.
The remaining portion after deducting placing commission,
professional fees and all related expenses amounting
HK$30,724,000 (equivalent to RMB26,913,000) were credited
to the Company’s share premium account.

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED  H B 9% 35 S Ak % B A5 L A4

RAFEBREERAFROOLET °

(b)

(c)

w]

RZE-_—F+A+HB AR AUWEE
High Kelee » 170,000,000 f% & f%  {5£0.01
BT EBREDIRETR0.161E TN B
277 (M 5E40) » 39 £ 581,700,000 7T
(FHENARKL1463,0007T) HHERZE
TEBREE B ARXRIRBRAE - F
8 505 425,670,000 7T (MEE R AR
22,094,0007T) ' B st ARNRA RIS H B o

RZTZ_F+A-++H - BREED
{5 DA 3R B 7K A §] 15,000,000 A% & @8 f% - 1%
{8 73,000,000 7T - E 7 150,000% 7T (48
BER AR 138,0007T) B & ABRA - i &4
#2,850,000 % 7T (1% 1 A R 2,635,000
70) Bt ARMIEERR - R ERRETE
AR#1,097,0007tE AR EFHEE RS
47 )4 B B o

RZBEZ=F=A=+hB RBERZ=ZF
ZZFZRA+TEHBREN —MEBERERER
o EREAAUEITESNR0.155 8 L
17215,453,520 & & AX A {E 0.01 B Jo A 3
A% o %@ AR A E 2,155,000 7T (B8 BN A
R#1,886,00070) B HSBELALRR
ARAREAN -IBREERE BEEA
K AT AE R X & K% T 384 30,724,000
BT (HERARK26913,0007T)  B5f
ARRQ R IRD R ERR -
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for eligible participant which includes any full-time or part-
time employees, potential employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
in the sole opinion of the board of directors, will contribute or
has contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Details of options are as follows:

Closing price of
the securities
immediately before
the date on which

the options

Option Type Date of grant were granted

RREZE

WRERHAMY

MR R BHAH BB HF U™ (E

Ordinary shares 13 April 2022 HK$0.157

TiEmR —E-_F 0.157 % 7T
mMA+=H

Ordinary shares 14 April 2023 HK$0.121

EiB bl et = 0.121% 7T
/MA+mA

The exercisable period of the options granted are determined
by the board of directors of the Company at its absolute
discretion. The share options will expire no later than three
years from the date of grant.

i 5 R W

34. MERxiERT &
ARBR/AERSEE (BREFS2ER
RESHRELHARRB R, EAEAH B
NAMEHER 2 AR A KA B QA
ZIEAEBERBIES  BERESR - TTHA
BERFABE (BERT  FRITRIBIIE
WITES)) RUBIRAERE (15181 -

BREFBNT
Exercisahle
Vesting period period Exercise price
REH TEH TR
1 year from the 13 April 2022— HK$0.2
date of grant 12 April 2025
BREAN —T-—F 0.2 7T
R —F mWA+=H=
—E-RF
MA+=H
1 year from the 14 April 2023— HK$0.2
date of grant 13 April 2026
BREAE —ZT-=F 0.277T
BEr—F MA+MAZE
—EREF
MA+=H

ERHWEREZTERRARAESES
REBBETE - BRESNEL AR =F
&
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34. ERRiEsTE 2
HARY  STEIE TRERESE 2 # BB mT

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

A summary of the movements of the number of share options

under the Scheme during the period is as follows:

Outstanding Outstanding
atthe beginning  Granted during Exercised Cancelled atthe end of
Types of participant of the year the year  during the year  during the year the year
RER REX
SHERA ARTE ERRH FENTTE EMH R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HE-S-=
+ZA=+-ALEE
Xu Chengwu R 8,000,000 4,000,000 - - 12,000,000
Teng Hao iy - 11,500,000 - - 11,500,000
Employees E& 47,000,000 19,700,000 - (8,000,000) 58,700,000
Consultants B 2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) -
57,500,000 35,200,000 - (10,500,000) 82,200,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) — METH17EE (B ) 02 02 02 02 02
Weighted average share price at the date 771 B B340 M#E-F 319 /% B
of exercise (HK$) (A1) NATE
For the year ended 31 December 2022~ HEZ-ZE-—%
TZAZT-RLEE
Chen Sheng B - 10,000,000 (10,000,000) - -
Xu Chengwu R - 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000
Employees EE - 47,000,000 - - 47,000,000
Consultants B - 10,000,000 (5,000,000) (2,500,000) 2,500,000
- 75,000,000 (15,000,000) (2,500,000) 57,500,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$)  METHTEE (B) - 02 02 02 02
Weighted average share price atthe date 171 B 1) E T IRE
of exercise (HK$) (B7L) 0.127
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Group recognised a share-based payment expense
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Directors =
Employees ==
Consultants =l

At 31 December 2023, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 82,200,000 (2022: 57,500,000),
representing 5.6% (2022: 4.6%) of the shares of the Company
in issue at that date.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, options were
granted on 13 April 2023 and the estimated fair values of the
options granted on that date were RMB729,000 (2022: During
the year ended 31 December 2022, options were granted
on 13 April 2022 and the estimated fair values of the options
granted on that date were RMB5,405,000).

i 5 R W

34. ERRiEsTE 2

AEERGEEAEIEME2EKRERER
AR RER A RAAT

2023 2022
—E_=SE —E-—

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABR¥TiT ABRETFT

321 1,394

408 3,367

- 644

729 5,405

R-ZZE-=F+-A=+—8  REFE2
FEE®ARITE 2 BT S R 2 BR1D 8B
/82,200,000 f% (== = — 4 : 57,500,000
f%) AR ABRZAB BTG E5.6% (=
TZ_F 1 46%) °

BE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—RBLEE"
BRENR-ZF-_=FNA+=HRL MK
ZABREMBERENGARAFEAARE
72900 (ZE-—_F HE-_ZT__F
TZA=F+—BIEFE  BRER-ZT==
FOAT=BAELE  MARZERLOERE
rfE s A FEAARES5,4050007T) °

ANNUALREPORT 2023 =& =44 Ht



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 34. MERRHEETEl 2
The fair values of share options were calculated using Binomial BERENATFEDREBEUTHERA IR
Option Pricing Model based on following data: N EEEAGE
Batch 1 Batch 2 AL ot
Share Options Share Options i {2 {3
Grant date 13 April 2022 14 April 2023 RHAH T CZTZZ=H
WA+=H MWA+IEH
Share price at grant date HK$0.178 HK$0.119 R B M RE 0.178%7; 0119587
Exercise price at grant date HK$0.2 HK$0.2 R AHMITEE 0257 0287
Expected volatility 96.33% 51.17% AERE % 96.33% 51.17%
Expected life 3 years 3 years RHREH 3F 3F
Risk-free rate 2.02% 3.00% £ e olpe 2.02% 3.00%
Fair value at grant date RO AHEMATFE
- Directors HK$0.0907 HK$0.0237 -EF 0.0907#7mL  0.0237%7T
— Employees or consultants HK$0.0754 HK$0.0236 —EERERM 0.0754%87  0.0236/57C
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% TR S e & 0.00% 0.00%
Exercise multiples IR E#
- Directors 2.75 2.80 -3 2.75 2.80
- Employees or consultants 2.20 2.20 —EE R 2.20 2.20
The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to THEAAETERAC ARG ERES
estimate the fair value of the share options. The variables NEE-TEEREAFEMBZEZH LR
and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the RNIRBEE REM - BHEELHZE
share options were based on the directors’ best estimate. ARRRERBE=FHELRBET - 78
The expected volatility was determined with reference to the HREEDBREBEAQNRBIRKRE WS EET
historical volatilities of the Company’s share prices over the BHoBEhkECEEESTIERR 2 TRE
last three years. The expected dividend yield was based on i B E -

the historical dividend yields of the Company. The value of
an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.
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35. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the consolidated financial statements.

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares of the Company and net proceeds received
from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company may be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the
subsidiaries of the Company that was registered in the PRC
is required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses), determined in
accordance with the PRC GAAP, to the statutory reserve until
the balance of the reserve funds reaches 50% of the entity’s
registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase capital, provided the remaining
balance of the statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

The capital reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2023 and
2022 represents the share capital of entities comprising the
Group prior to the reorganisation and the reserves arising from
the reorganisation for the purpose of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
for the translation of financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 2.5.

Share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the scheme
participants over the vesting period and are dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.21.
The share option reserve is non-distributable.

i 5 R W

35. R

REBEE_T_=FfK-_FT-__F+-A
=+ BLEFE  ARENFESEREE
BIINGRMBHRENGAEREBRET

s ERARF R EESR‘|ETA
RER I TS RIBF R 28R -

RERSFHESRAE - ARBIRMD G ERA
AR RARRS A DRI E - R ERE 2
S IRSARE 2 B E#TR - RARIGEHMR B
FEBBRETNEINRR ZE -

RIEFBQRNE - AR B R & B A & B
BRARABBRETFEARSHRAUNETN
BREFEAEEMN(CHEBETMAEFE
MEEB)MI0O%EREATHE EEHEE
BoMEREDBEEBEMEARNS0% < KT
FEATARKEBEFEENBRIARNIE
MEA - EFRIBREERHBEHTOREME
KH)25% °

m_j_*iﬁ_g::¢+—ﬁi+—
$§@m§$ﬁﬁﬁ$%IFT§%%
7aN %

PFrJ:m k3 TTZE@E@T&%%

E X R EBIIEBRBERERZAAE
ENERENK - FHEDREMZE25HNE
AR T IAREE

BREREGENEEHRARFTIHZ2EERD

BROERRZ REtFX - M EIIREN
221 FAEE AT BUORETTRIE - BAEREE
AR
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. AT B HFIRA T

COMPANY
2023 2022
—E-=5F — T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k23 AR®TFIT ARBFor
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 17 28,061 27,861
Financial asset at fair value through 12 A FEFFAEBRZ
profit or loss TREE 23 908 6,000
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U —FE B B A R ZR IR 221,119 199,924
250,088 233,785
Current assets mENEE
Prepayments TR RIE - 955
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 283 285
283 1,240
Current liabilities mEAER
Other payables H b E R 9,144 2,000
Amount due to subsidiaries JEAST BT B /T/\ = 7,860
9,144 9,860
Net current liabilities mOAERE (8,861) (8,620)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHAR 241,227 225,165
Non-current liabilities EREBAMR
Other payable H e IR - 600
Contingent consideration HARE 29 — 4,758
- 5,358
Net assets EERE 241,227 219,807
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BFR R
Share capital f& A< 33 12,334 10,448
Reserves (Note) () 228,893 209,359
Total equity BEoWE 241,227 219,807
= Amount less than RMB1,000. &l SEEION AR 1,0007T ©
TENG HAOQ XU CHENGWU
g R
Chairman Director
FE EZ
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. ZLFHMEBERAER 2
COMPANY (continued)
Note: The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows: KiaF R AR ENERIT -

Share  Translation Share option Accumulated
premium reserve reserve loss Total
B ERGkIE MBAREGR RHBE Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFir AREFT AREFIT AREFT AREFIT

Balance at 1 January 2022 R—-ZT— — 4

—A—HZz#&s 221,155 1,264 - (47,599) 174,820
Loss and total comprehensive & A E518 K 2 [ Bl 52
expenses for the year FEk - - - (11,637) (11,637)
Recognition of equity-settled RUAMR LS E A
share-based payment f&in ABERAR
(note 34) (Hist34) - - 5,405 - 5,405
Exercise of share options TR
(note 33(b)) (B17£33(b)) 3,732 - (1,097) - 2,635
Cancellation of share options 5T 4 B& A% ## - - (161) 161 -
Issue of share capital BT A
(note 33(a)) (12 33(a)) 22,094 - - - 22,094
Exchange difference on BRERBENEKZ
translation to presentation [ W =58
currency - 16,042 - - 16,042
Balance at 31 December R-ZE——
2022 and 1 January 2023 +—-—A=+—HK
T =F
—A—HZ&% 246,981 17,306 4,147 (59,075) 209,359
Loss and total comprehensive £ A E518 & 2 Fi X2
expenses for the year Fk) - - - (13,334) (13,334)
Recognition of equity-settled  #E72 bA RS 4 45 & 1A
share-based payment A& 17 B B R A 5k
(note 34) (H5#34) - - 729 - 729
Cancellation of share options &+ # 88 A& k& - - (676) 676 -
Issue of share capital BEATIR A
(note 33(c)) (B2 33(c)) 26,913 - - - 26,913
Exchange difference on BREREINEKZ
translation to presentation [ 5, =5
currency - 5,226 - - 5,226

Balance at 31 December R-E-=%
2023 +=RA=+—H
ZiEes 273,894 22,532 4,200 (71,733) 228,893
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37. LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. HERIE

At the reporting date, the lease commitment for short term
lease are as follows:

RBEEE EHEECHEAZNAT

2023 2022
—E=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ®TFT ARETFT
Land and buildings: T RIETF :
Within one year —FR 56 50

The Group leases out investment property under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 2-5
years. There is no early termination option, extension option
and renewal option in the contract.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating
lease of investment property in place at the reporting date will

AEBERBELLEHELARE R - HER
FERH2ESF - ANT AL EBRERT
IR CTREEENEHBEER-

AEBRBEAHREREVE Z TR
HEEHEEZ RMBRBEN KR R REHE

be receivable by the Group in future periods as follows: ZEWGIBNT

2023 2022

—EC-=HF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FiT AREFor
Less than one year LR—F 3,199 3,279
One to two years —EWE 3,044 2,520
Two to three years NZE =4 989 2,617
Three to four years —FEPF - 559
7,232 8,975
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EXRKIE
2023 2022
—E-= —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFiT ARETFT
Contracted but not provided for BRTHE R E R
— Interests in associates — B N B RS 30,645 30,645
— Property, plant and equipment o E N N 12,600 -
43,245 30,645
According to the article of association of Zhejiang Yunyou, the RETIEROASERMA > REBEEN
Group is committed to invest further RMB30,400,000 on or R-ZZENZEF+_A=+—HxZABE
before 31 December 2040. & AR % 30,400,000 7T °
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. AR H
The Group had the following transactions with related parties: AEEEBERFEUNTRS
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEREARTH
2023 2022
—E_= g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR&TFir AREFor
Short term employee benefits NMEEERT 2,300 2,477
Retirement scheme contributions IRIREFTEIHE K 33 42

2,333 2,519

ANNUALREPORT2023 —Z— =448 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. UxRE P S 2 )

On 15 July 2022, the Company acquired 51% equity interests
in High Kelee Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiary
(“Kelee Group”), from an independent third party at a
contingent cash consideration of HK$8,828,000 (equivalent
to RMB7,840,000) (note 29), and the allotment and issue of
170,000,000 Consideration Shares. Kelee Group is engaged in
research and development, manufacturing and sale of fabric
care, personal hygiene and home care products.

The directors of the Company considered that the acquisition
of equity interest in Kelee Group is beneficial to the Group to
diversified the adverse impact on the worldwide and the global
economy.

RZEBEZZFLA+THRB  AAFAHKA
R4 R1E8,828,000F L (HERARK
7,840,0007T) (Miz29) M —&BBILFE=FH
Il B% High Kelee Investment Holdings Limited
MEHBRR ([Kelee £ [ ) #951% %
I B2 % N % 17 170,000,000 A% X B I 15 o
Kelee R Bt HHE: - RUERHEBYER -
BEAFERREERE® °

KRNBEEZRE WiHEKelee B 2 IR
RN A E B D S 2Bk N 2 B E 2 T F

=4
FEo

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of RIGBARFTBEEERCBRIEAR
acquisition
RMB’000

ARETFT
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 3,977
Trade and other receivables B 5 ME M EIFRIA 14,579
Inventories e 10,947
Property, plant and equipment T S 9,967
Intangible assets ELEE 6,301
Short term borrowings SRR (4,130)
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b ET /I8 (1,395)
Contract liabilities GHAEE (509)
Tax payables FEAS TR (506)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE (1,012)
Total identifiable net assets Al R HEE AR 38,219
Non-controlling interests Pl (18,727)
Net assets acquired BREREE 19,492
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

f 7 B 5 e 2 M

40. IEBME A (&)

Business combinations (Continued) EBao &)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEFELEE
RMB’000
AREFIT
Contingent consideration payable TS AKRE 4,304
Shares consideration EERE 23,557
Non-controlling interests FEfE R 18,727
Fair value of identifiable assets acquired FrU B Al BB E E R A FE (38,219)
8,369
Net cash outflow on acquisition e F BF B 2 L R R
RMB’000
AREFIT
Cash and cash equivalent acquired BWERELEEEEY 3,977
Cash consideration paid EMBEeRE -
3,977
Impact of acquisition on the result of the Group WEEIFY X EFEEIRE

Included in the profit for the year is RMB137,000 for the year
attributable to the additional business generated by the Kelee
Group. Revenue for the year includes RMB18,555,000 in
respect of the Kelee Group. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2022, the Group’s revenue would have been
increased by RMB49,861,000 and profit for the year would
have been increased by RMB6,114,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022. This pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2022, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

FRFEFBIERFEHKelee EEE S 258
HNEEFEE (R AR 137,000 - FRNE B
& B Kelee 52 B B BM A R 5 18,555,000 7T ©
WKBEER-_TE-_—_F—A—A%4% - 8l
AEEEBE_T-_—_F+_A=+—H1t
FRE RS 538 i1 A R % 49,861,000 7T © £
755 A 5 18 0 A R #56,114,0007C ° &=
BEREESBAR T —EREWEEE
RZE-—F—A—HEKBEAEEZTE
AER W M E EENIEE - T RE
BARIREE ZTER -
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41.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND NON-CASH

TRANSACTION

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing

activities can be classified as follows:

At 1 January 2022

Cash-flows:

— Repayment

— Proceeds

— Capital element of lease rentals
paid

— Interest element of lease rentals
paid

Non-cash:

Addition through acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 40)

— Effective interest charges

— Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Cash-flows:

— Repayment

— Proceeds

— Capital element of lease rentals
paid

— Interest element of lease rentals
paid

Non-cash:

— Effective interest charges

At 31 December 2023

RZEZ=ZF—H—H
ReRE:
—(EEHE
— P18 508
—-BEffER:
BEARE
—-BEfNHEERS
BB
EHR&:
—FERWENBATRE
(H12%40)
—EBRMEZ N
— [ AR

A
+-—A=+—8BX
—E-=%—H—H

ReRE:

— (BB EIg

— T8 sIE

—BENHEREZER

o

—BEfHERS 2T A

i)
R :
—EBRMNEXZH

BZEZZ=

+=A=+—H

41. REEHEEMARHKRREIER
®X 5

AEERETHELNAENES A DE

LN

Bank borrowings

&=

RMB’000
AR TIT

89,327

(134,024)
111,732

4,130

765

71,930

(104,750)
41,000

8,180
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Lease liahilities
HEAR
RMB’000

AR FT

11,900

(5,739)

(575)

575

6,161

(6,161)

(255)

255

Total

Hat
RMB'000
ARETFT
101,227

(134,024)
111,732

(5,739)

(575)

4,130

575
765

78,091

(104,750)
41,000

(6,161)

(255)

255

8,180
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 42. i RBEEER 2 FEHRTE
MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

AEERENAFLERREASFTER
TRTAMEEVERR - MEREBRED
SRR (BENERRERMNEER)  FE
Rk K g E & B

REBPAAENBBRR LA SE L E IR
ZERBRAKBOMHEREERRNE
DIFH T3

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

2023 2022
—=E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFIT AREFor
Financial assets eREE
Measured at FVTPL: BAVEAEZE
Unlisted equity investments LR ATE 908 6,000
Measured at amortised cost: WEIEKAGTE
Trade and other receivables B NhHMEWFRIA 45,397 61,919
Net investment in leases HEKE FE - 6,748
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR AR 49,456 47,551
95,761 122,218
Financial liabilities SMER
Measured at FVTPL: BEAFEF ARG
Derivative financial instruments PTEHEEemT A 404 -
Contingent consideration HARE - 4,758
404 4758
Measured at amortised cost: R AETE
Trade and other payables B 5 N A b e GRIE 26,847 13,346
Lease liabilities HEBE - 6,161
Bank borrowings IRITIEX 8,180 71,930
35,027 91,437
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 42. i B RBEEER 2 FEHTE @

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from its sales to overseas,
which are primarily denominated in USD. These are not the
functional currencies of the Group entities to which these
transactions relate.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, cash
flows in foreign currencies are monitored and forward foreign
exchange contracts are entered into in accordance with the
Group’s risk management policies. Generally, the Group’s
risk management procedures distinguish short term foreign
currency cash flows (due within 6 months) from longer term
cash flows. Where the amounts to be paid and received in a
specific currency are expected to largely offset one another, no
further hedging activity is undertaken.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities,
translated into RMB at the closing rates, are as follows:

Assets: BE:
usD ETT

Net exposures ORE
UsD EV

Notional amounts of forward foreign
exchange contracts denominated at USD %8

SMERBRESRTANAFELRRES
8 A E R MK B R R o AKE S
B ERIRE HEEZUXTFHENREIS
HE - ZFEBAERTRFBMNAE
EEENINGEE -

RBEREEEZNIINERR - AR ERE
HEMREEBRFRITRINER SR - WEFTR
HINESHK) - — s - NEENERER
BFABEEIINER SR CNEAREH)
HEEESARRD - WRNEFEEE L
WHRH @ IR ERAEE B HEE
A NEEITE — SRS -

INESFESREELRABENEMERHRE
BARE  SEWMT

UETAHEMERINESG DR E

2023 2022
—E-=F —=Eg-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT ARBFor
35,098 75,351
35,098 75,351
35,780 -
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s loss
after income tax for the year and equity as at reporting date in
regard to an appreciation in the Group’s functional currency
against the foreign currencies. These sensitivity rates represent
management’s best assessment of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

usb e

The same percentage depreciation in the Group’s functional
currency against the respective foreign currencies would have
the same magnitude on the Group’s loss after tax for the year
as at the reporting date but of opposite effect.

At 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group is exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate bank deposits
and fixed-rate borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at fixed rates of interest so as to minimise its
exposures on interest rate movements.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk relating
to the Group’s variable-rate bank deposits. In management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative as the cash
flow interest rate risk is not significant to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity rate

i 5 R W

42. BERBEERRLOFEHTE @

THRFURA £ B F NGB % IR R
BSR 2 500 M 25 0 9 B O B 3651
BFHER B KSR L ERRE R
B S S A B R B AT A -

Increase in loss
for the year

BRELFE FRBREM
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TiT AREFT
5% 1,928 3,202

AEBMEEERERIMNENHEHR AL
RE eYAKERNRE BHMNFAKRTR
BEELRSEEEEARMNTE -

RZE-_=FR_FE-_—_F+-_A=+—
B ASEAEBREBREMNERTFRLEE
MEREFHBZATFEMNERRR - A£EH
BER A ETFERMER  UEFHEEE 2
R AR 2RI -

AEE T E R EAKET BRTFREH
ZHRERENEER - EHEERBR/GURMED
I EARNE  ARRSARENTE L&
BB HREMELAERK -

7 6% 8 35 B 30 A AT ) ) SR B RR © 2R
EEESEREMNERAR YHERRTERE
BE IR EAF K@
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE  42.

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group. The Group'’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations and from its investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to the carrying amount at the
reporting date as summarised in note 42.1.

Bank balances and cash are placed at financial institutions that
have sound credit rating and the Group considers the credit
risk to be insignificant.

For other receivables measured at amortised cost, the exposures
to credit risk are monitored such that any outstanding
debtors are reviewed and followed up on an ongoing basis.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary course of
business due to its large customer base. The Group does not
hold any collateral from its debtors.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed
and maintains the Group’s credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
credit rating information is based on the Group’s own trading
records to rate its major customers and other debtors. The
Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

MERBREERXTFEHE 2

EERRESRTANIZIHF I RE
TEREBRTRAGRBETHNEL  EHAE

EXRZMBERNRR AEEEENEER
ERFrERENEELETRTELNE
ERERER -

ZIKE@?JEEHEH EREEAXNESEER

@AM EE42 1 PR B R ¥R B i R @
TEZ%KE"
RITEBRLRBSFERRNERAFTRRINE

MEBEAEERSEERRYL TEK -

SLIREHA AT ENEMEBKFAMS » &
SEUMAZNERERRETES LA
WA RBETMREEER EFRR - X
SEREEPRHEAMLEFAEATER
RELAEERBRSEETHNER - AEE
WER A EEAEMERGR -

ARAREREEERE  AEECDHITEI
HRAEENEERRES  WIREKESE
HRBEE KRR O #ETOE - EER
ERDBREBEAESEEERFITUEHETE
BEMEMEBAETIR AEBFEE
AR E R E R RHER %ﬁimﬁﬁﬁ&
WHETR SN BEE D NEHENR
SEF o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE  42.

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The table below detail the credit quality of the Group’s financial
assets and other items, as well as the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades:

As at 31 December 2023

Note
Wit
Trade receivables V4
BHRIGE
Other receivables measured at 2
amortised cost
REERAHENENELTE
As at 31 December 2022
Note
Wit
Trade receivables Y4
BoRNGE
Net investment in leases 24
HEREFE
Other receivables measured at V4
amortised cost

REBNAG EME AR

Internal
credit rating

hBERTE

(Note)
53

Stage 1

F-B&

Internal
credit rating

ABEEFR

(Note)
(53

(Note)
(Wit)

Stage 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i 5 R W

MERBREERQXFEHE @

W-E_=%+"RA=+—H

TRA/AAKESREEREMEANEE
BEURAEBAINEANEERR (ZE
BRSNS RS

Grossing Net carrying
12-month or lifetime ECL carrying amount  ECL allowance amount
HHGER
RERRRHANGERER EE#E BRAG IR E
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
AEBTE  AERTT  ARRTT
Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 42,034 4,867 37,167
PHEHEEHR (BE)
12-month ECL 8,230 - 8,230
RERRREERS
RZEB__F+-A=+—H
Grossing Net carrying
12-month or lifetime ECL carrying amount  ECL allowance amount
BHEE
PRERGZEREEEER KESE EREE REFE
RMBO0O RMB 000 RMBOOO
ANEEFT ANERFT ANEETFT
Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 53,246 1,594 51,662
PHEBEEHR (BE)
Lifetime ECL (simplified approach) 6,885 137 6,748
PHRBEERR(BLD)
12-month ECL 10,267 - 10,267
DREABHEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 42. i B RBEEER 2 FEHTE @

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Note: For trade receivables and net investment in leases, the Group
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the ECL
on these items by using a provision matrix, estimated based on
historical credit loss experience based on the past due status of
the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions
and estimates of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the
credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past
due status in terms of the provision matrix and the individual
credit rating for trade receivables and net investment in leases
respectively. Note 22 and note 24 include further details on
the loss allowance for trade receivables and net investment in
leases, respectively. The Group has recognised a loss allowance
of 100% against all receivables over two year past due. There
has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made.

Generally the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not show significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the provision for loss allowance based on
past due status in respect of trade receivables is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer base. As
at 31 December 2023, the Group considered the exposure to
credit risk and ECL for trade receivables which are assessed
collectively based on provision matrix and the individual credit
rating. Lifetime ECL amounted to RMB4,867,000 (2022:
RMB1,594,000) has been recognised for trade receivables.

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
objective is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets and
committed lines of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ [ )k 38 Sc b # ) 45 Bt

i B SEREFAREEREFEMS - A

SECEBAEEMBREEEIRAH
MECER2BREREREB R EEHER
B-AKEEBENBEBEEETXFA
BENBEREEEER REEBABDRR
MEBEBRAGAETH  TEHESH
B AR BRE AR SR RSB R B T -
At - 2FEENEERRELREEE
e 4z Hom BN B 2 B Bh 5 B MR
REEREFEZEARNEEFRZN - W
22 KMzt 24 5 BlE A B 5 WA R E
EREFEBEBREBNE-DHE A%
B O a8 @ B 2 F DA - RO P A JE MR IA B
REMERB/E - HETEZLXEARRL
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- B BN ERER S HEREEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

42.

i 5 R W

MERBREERQXFEHE @

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

When the creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled,
the liability is included on the basis of the earliest date on when
the Group can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated to the

earliest period in which the Group is committed to pay.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
including interest and contractual maturities.

BEDNEREAESEANKNZREAHGFA - #

REHM -

BRAFEEESAGENEH -EB8EUD
HIEERN  SHEIGARKREAREN

#

TRHALNGEERLAEBSRABEHRT S
I EIHIARR - THRERTHIRBRIR
(B ERa LB HIAR) L -

A2
EnE

Weighted
average Total Total carrying
effective undiscounted amount as at
interest rate Within 1 year 110 2 years cash flows 31 Decemher
®+=H
migEy RERRS =t+-H2
ERfE -/ -EmE nEAR REAH
% RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
% ARETFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
2023 k-
Non-derivative financial M AEARH &R
liabilities -1
Trade and other payables 2 5 & £t JE [ 508 NARER 26,847 = 26,847 26,847
Bank borrowings RITER 2.70% 8,342 = 8,342 8,180
35,189 - 35,189 35,027
2022 k- Jonfent:
Non-derivative financial ~ SEETEEMB &
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 &t fE( 508 NATER 13,346 - 13,346 13,346
Lease liabilities HEERE 4.80% 6,416 - 6416 6,161
Bank borrowings RITIER 4.40% 75,315 - 75,315 71,930
Contingent consideration AR E NATRiE R - 5,509 5,509 4758
95,077 5,509 100,586 9,195
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 3 SV 285 i 30 B

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 42. BEREEERAFEEE &
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the RIFETBRAKRFIZATFETEN SR
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into BELBGRAIOR=ZEATESFHR =%
three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are BENRFEERBABR ZIERIEE &
defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the E0MOT

measurements, as follows:

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for e ZE—H:-HREERBEREREMS
identical assets and liabilities. BIRE CRIEAE) -

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within e F_H - HMEENEBEEEIHEEH
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, AEBR 2 AER (TEREE—AME
either directly or indirectly and not using significant EHNHRE) BUBFERERTITERH
unobservable inputs. AU o

. Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset or . FoH - BEREBBEMNERTATER
liability. W AER -

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial CREESAEREMES ANATES

asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on BANBR  EERHAFEFEAEERKN

the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value EENREBIBALR -

measurement.

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December categorised into
RT+-B=+—HZLFEAESES
Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
®»+=H
=t+—H%
DFEE E—ik ot BEZR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTET ARETT ARBTT ARETT

2023 sz
Financial asset at fair value BROTFHEAREHER
through profit or loss gE
Unlisted equity investments FEmRAKE 908 - - 908
Financial liabilities kA=A
Derivative financial instruments TEEmTA

404 - 404 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 42. i B RBEEER 2 FEHE @

MEASUREMENTS (continued)
42.6 Fair value (Continued) 426 NF{HE (&)

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December categorised into

RTYZA=1T—HZRAFEFEDER

Fair value at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

K+=A

=+—Hz
NFE F— E-; EZR

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETT AEETT ARETT

2022 —EZCHE
Financial asset at fair value BROTEAARSHSHM
through profit or loss HE

Unlisted equity investments FETHRAKE - - - 6,000

Financial liabilities eRMERE

Contingent consideration FANKE 4,758 - - 4,758

(a) Derivative financial instruments not designated as hedging (a) FIEEBRLREMIRZHTELH
instruments (Level 2) TR(E=#)
Where derivatives are traded either on exchanges or ETAETEER SRR B MRS
liquid over-the-counter markets, the Group uses the INHIZETR SR ASERBARE
closing price at the end of the reporting period. Normally, AR mE - —fmsE  NEEE]
the derivatives entered into by the Group are not traded VHTETE NG EEREM S LETT
on active markets. The fair values of such contracts BEE ZEAHNNATEMGFHATER
are estimated using observable forward exchange rates FERHAER LR ESHONHABERAEEN
and interest rates corresponding to the maturity of the FEETHE - DA BERg ABEEHIT
contract. The effects of non-observable inputs are not SR TANTETTERK -

significant for the derivative financial instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

Unlisted equity investment (level 3)

The movements during the year in the balance of these
Level 3 fair value measurements are disclosed in note 23.
The methods and valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 3 fair value measurements are described below:

Valuation technique
ER

Unlisted equity Market comparable

investment companies earnings before
interest and taxes
ratios
JELTmiEREE S A LA ] EEE/ BB
Ppillnded

Discount of lack of

42. BERBEERRLOFEHTE @

(b)

Unobservable input
AU BRREBAHE

Enterprise value/

marketability
Ew Wi mErEm

i

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the fair value of
an unlisted equity investment has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Graval Consulting
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers. The
fair value of unlisted equity investments is determined
using the enterprise value/earnings before interest and
taxes ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted
for lack of marketability discount. An increase in the
discount for lack of marketability would decrease the fair
value.

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED v B 9% 38 S AL % B A5 L A )

FLARERTA (BZH)
BEE=MRATEAENEBRER
ZEBRHEBHE - B=RATE
518 B 2 7 B A (B BT A S 8 A
SR TSRl *

2023 2022
—E-=5F —=E-=

7.64 9.21

21.23% 23.83%

RZEZ=FR=ZZT==_F+=A
=+—H8 FLTRAREZATFE
TREB LA EREEMEMEED
EEMARARETZHEEZER I
FTHRAKREZ A EDEBATE
BEMRRZOEEE /BB LR
HER AT L REE YRR T5R
BURRELEE - ARZMERE
M S A2 ST R > A A -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure
and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of the debt to equity ratio. For this purpose, debt is
defined as borrowings and lease liabilities. In order to maintain
or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and raise
new debt financing.

The debt to equity ratio at each reporting date was:

Bank borrowings and lease liabilities

Total equity 48 25
Debt to equity ratio B ERER =

RITEFRREERE

i 5 R W

43. BFER
AEENEAERBEREAERRNERRE
EREEMMRYEBRRAS AR

AREEBEGR N E MRS EEARE  LHEE
RERRBAFL AR - AEEAAEES
R ERERABEARRE -3t - BERE
RERREEARE - BEFIARZLE
AEEARHEARRKN BRSNS - &7
MR EEHEHRE

REREAH RERRLES:

2023 2022
—E-=F —=g-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT ARBFT
8,180 78,091
411,080 398,998
1.99% 19.6%
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Five-Year Financial Summary

h AR R

RESULTS

Revenue

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit/(expense)
Loss for the year

(Loss)/Profit for the year
attributable to:
— Equity holders of
the Company
— Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

3

W zs
BRAT S BRI 1R
FisBiE S,/ (%)
FREE

Bl R (B) /
LK
N

BEA
SRR

RERRAR
BEE
BwaE

BEFE

AREESERHEA
eI
IR S

2023
—2°=%
RMB'000
ARBFIT

355,675
(14,854)

(3,758)
(18,612)

(23,932)
5,320

(18,612)

2023
~BC=H¥
RMB’000
AR®TFT

452,483
(41,403)

411,080

383,104
21,976

411,080

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLE=EE
2022 2021 2020
—E-C —E--F CZZEZEHF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBEFT AEEFT ARETT

301,113 242,212 252,252
(10,926) (17,850) (81,191)
(3,685) 433 12,754
(14,611) (17,417) (68,437)
(15,140) (17,722) (68,437)
529 305 -
(14,611) (17,417) (68,437)

As at 31 December

®+=B=+—H
2022 2021 2020
—E-- —E-—F —E-FF

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARRTT AREFT

498,029 487,152 460,112
(99,031) (122,612) (108,584)

398,998 364,540 351,528
376,377 361,175 351,528

22,621 3,365 -
398,998 364,540 351,528

CHINA PARTYTIME CULTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ |8 9% 38 S AL 2% Bt A5 It 2 )

2019

—E-NF
RMB'000
ARETFT

316,064
(76,544)

4,339
(72,205)

(72,205)

(72,205)

2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
AREFT

561,199
(141,516)

419,683

419,683

419,683
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